
 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

12/03/2024 10:00 AM  
 

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 
 

AGENDA 
 

This meeting will be held in person ONLY and the public is welcome to attend. 
 

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the  
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969. 

                                      
JAY CARMONA 
CHAIRMAN 
 
CLAY MITCHELL 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
LANCE GILMAN 
COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 

JIM HINDLE 
CLERK-TREASURER 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for 
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Health Board, Storey County Brothel 
License Board, Storey County Water and Sewer System Board, Storey County Highway Board and 
the Storey County Liquor and Licensing Board and during this meeting may convene as any of 
those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda. All matters listed under the 
consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of County 
Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or 
any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon 
separately during this meeting.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be 
taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 
the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the 
agenda at any time.  The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time allotted for each 
individual to speak.  Public comment is limited to three minutes per individual. 
 
All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless 
marked otherwise. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M. 

 
2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 



4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and end 
of each meeting. These comments are limited to matters not on today’s agenda. Public 
comment will also be allowed during each agenda item upon which action will be taken. 
These comments must be limited to the item on the agenda. Public comment is limited to 
three minutes per individual, with discretion of the board chair. 
 

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the December 3, 2024, 
meeting.  

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
I For possible action, approval of business license first readings: 

A. All Points Electric LLC – Contractor / 5600 Grass Valley Rd. ~ Reno, NV 
B. Allied Mechanical Services LLC – Contractor /  
            1350 Freeport Blvd Ste. 104 ~ Sparks, NV 
C. American Pacific Concrete, LLC – Contractor /  
            18124 Wedge Pkwy. # 418 ~ Reno, NV 
D. Co2 Monitoring LLC – Contractor / 4310 Cameron St. # 7 ~ 
            Las Vegas, NV  
E. Corestates Construction Services Inc. – Contractor / 
            3237 Satellite Blvd. Ste. 465 ~ Duluth, GA 
F. Eagles Crest Inc. – Contractor / 4865 Joule St. #C6 ~ Reno, NV 
G. Emiliooo’s Plumbing & Water Heaters – Contractor / 
            1357 Viellion Pike Ln. ~ Carson City, NV 
H. Encore Automation LLC – Out of County / 50 Corporate Dr. ~ 
            Auburn Hills, MI 
I. Graywolf Integrated Construction Company – Contractor /  
            2205 Ragu Dr. ~ Owensboro, KY 
J. Impact Dock Works, Inc. – Contractor / 16787 Beach Blvd. #785 ~  
            Huntington Beach, CA 
K. Jones Sign Co., Inc. – Contractor / 1711 Scheuring Rd. ~ De Pere, WI 
L. Revival Paint Management – Contractor / 135 Shadycrest Dr. ~  
            Verdi, NV 
M. Shootin Trouble Electrical Servicing LLC – Contractor /  
            198 Shady Grove Ln. ~ Dayton, NV 
N. Sierra Summit Landscaping, LLC – Contractor / 
            18124 Wedge Pkwy. # 418 ~ Reno, NV 
O. Sunbelt Rentals Inc. – General / 1121 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV 
P. T J I Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 2590 Baxter Way ~ Sparks, NV 
Q.        Virginia City Mercantile – General / 85 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV  

 
 
 
 
 



II Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel policies 100 
Employer Personnel Policies and Acknowledgement; 101 Personnel 
Administrative Directive; 102 Computing Time for Notice/Failure to Receive 
Notices; 103 Employee Change of Address; 104 Personnel Files – Contents; 105 
Personnel File & Confidential Information; and 106 Disposal of Personnel 
Records.  

 
III Approval of claims in the amount of $13,852,497.95.  

 
7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports 

 
8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) 

 
9. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to postpone the public hearing for the 
proposed revised Old Corner Bar lease to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC  and 
related agenda items to the December 17, 2024 Storey County Board of 
Commissioners meeting to allow for legal postings.  

 
10. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-753, a resolution 
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution 
per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year 
and superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County 
employees with the addition of Project Manager at grade 133 and 
Accounting/Payroll Specialist at grade 122.  

 
11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and 
approve the amended contract between Department of Health and Human 
Services Division of Health Care Financing and Policy due to the increase in 
medical care costs from $10,357.36 to $41,120.88.  

 
12. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD 

 
13. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Report of the Public Works Department regarding roads and highways 
throughout Storey County.  

 
14. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 



15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Safety 
Manual as approved by the Safety Committee.  

 
16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Presentation, public workshop, discussion, and consideration directing staff 
regarding updates to the Storey County Strategic Plan for Fiscal Year 2025-2026.
  

17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings: 
A. Carson Tahoe Electric – Contractor / 1985 E. Valley Rd. ~ Minden, NV 
B.         Food Cartel LLC – Food Truck / 1377 Jenny’s Ln ~ Fernley, NV  

 
18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action). Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and end 

of each meeting. These comments are limited to matters not on today’s agenda. Public 
comment will also be allowed during each agenda item upon which action will be taken. 
These comments must be limited to the item on the agenda. Public comment is limited to 
three minutes per individual, with discretion of the board chair. 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
 
NOTICE: 

• Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings. 
• Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding 

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969. 
• Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear. 
• Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited 

to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon 
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the 
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the 
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 

• Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, 
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin. 

• In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from 
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including 
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, 
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for 
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all 
bases apply to all programs).  Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or 
incident. 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact 
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or 



contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.  Additionally, program 
information may be made available in languages other than English.  
To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at 
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a 
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.  
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992.  Submit your completed form or 
letter to USDA by:  
 
(1) mail:  U.S. Department of Agriculture  
                 Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights  

           1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
           Washington, D.C. 20250-9410.  
 

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or  
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.  
 
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 
 

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special 
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in 
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440. 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
I, Drema Smith,  Administrative Assistant to Storey County, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused 
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 11/26/2024;  Storey County 
Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N 
C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, 
VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.  
This agenda was also posted to the Nevada State website at https://notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey 
County website at: https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter  
 
 
By ______________________________________ 
    Drema Smith 
    Administrative Assistant II           

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:program.intake@usda.gov
https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the December 3, 2024,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A. All Points Electric LLC – Contractor / 5600 Grass Valley Rd. ~ Reno, NV
• B. Allied Mechanical Services LLC – Contractor / 1350 Freeport Blvd Ste. 104 ~ Sparks,

NV
• C. American Pacific Concrete, LLC – Contractor / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. # 418 ~ Reno,

NV
• D. Co2 Monitoring LLC – Contractor / 4310 Cameron St. # 7 ~ Las Vegas, NV 
• E. Corestates Construction Services Inc. – Contractor / 3237 Satellite Blvd. Ste. 465 ~

Duluth, GA
• F. Eagles Crest Inc. – Contractor / 4865 Joule St. #C6 ~ Reno, NV
• G. Emiliooo’s Plumbing & Water Heaters – Contractor / 1357 Viellion Pike Ln. ~ Carson

City, NV
• H. Encore Automation LLC – Out of County / 50 Corporate Dr. ~ Auburn Hills, MI
• I. Graywolf Integrated Construction Company – Contractor / 2205 Ragu Dr. ~

Owensboro, KY
• J. Impact Dock Works, Inc. – Contractor / 16787 Beach Blvd. #785 ~ Huntington Beach,

CA
• K. Jones Sign Co., Inc. – Contractor / 1711 Scheuring Rd. ~ De Pere, WI
• L. Revival Paint Management – Contractor / 135 Shadycrest Dr. ~ Verdi, NV
• M. Shootin Trouble Electrical Servicing LLC – Contractor / 198 Shady Grove Ln. ~

Dayton, NV
• N. Sierra Summit Landscaping, LLC – Contractor / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. # 418 ~ Reno,

NV
• O. Sunbelt Rentals Inc. – General / 1121 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV
• P. T J I Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 2590 Baxter Way ~ Sparks, NV
• Q. Virginia City Mercantile – General / 85 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

     6  I



Commissioner's meeting for approval. 

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office November 20, 2024 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the December 03, 2024 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

FIRST READINGS: 

A. All Points Electric LLC – Contractor / 5600 Grass Valley Rd. ~ Reno, NV

B. Allied Mechanical Services LLC – Contractor / 1350 Freeport Blvd Ste. 104 ~ Sparks, NV

C. American Pacific Concrete, LLC – Contractor / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. # 418 ~ Reno, NV

D. Co2 Monitoring LLC – Contractor / 4310 Cameron St. # 7 ~ Las Vegas, NV

E. Corestates Construction Services Inc. – Contractor / 3237 Satellite Blvd. Ste. 465 ~ Duluth, GA

F. Eagles Crest Inc. – Contractor / 4865 Joule St. #C6 ~ Reno, NV

G. Emiliooo’s Plumbing & Water Heaters – Contractor / 1357 Viellion Pike Ln. ~ Carson City, NV

H. Encore Automation LLC – Out of County / 50 Corporate Dr. ~ Auburn Hills, MI

I. Graywolf Integrated Construction Company – Contractor / 2205 Ragu Dr. ~ Owensboro, KY

J. Impact Dock Works, Inc. – Contractor / 16787 Beach Blvd. #785 ~ Huntington Beach, CA

K. Jones Sign Co., Inc. – Contractor / 1711 Scheuring Rd. ~ De Pere, WI

L. Revival Paint Management – Contractor / 135 Shadycrest Dr. ~ Verdi, NV

M. Shootin Trouble Electrical Servicing LLC – Contractor / 198 Shady Grove Ln. ~ Dayton, NV

N. Sierra Summit Landscaping, LLC – Contractor / 18124 Wedge Pkwy. # 418 ~ Reno, NV

O. Sunbelt Rentals Inc. – General / 1121 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV

P. T J I Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 2590 Baxter Way ~ Sparks, NV

Q. Virginia City Mercantile – General / 85 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel policies 100
Employer Personnel Policies and Acknowledgement; 101 Personnel Administrative
Directive; 102 Computing Time for Notice/Failure to Receive Notices; 103 Employee
Change of Address; 104 Personnel Files – Contents; 105 Personnel File & Confidential
Information; and 106 Disposal of Personnel Records.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with staff recommendation, I (commissioner)
move to approve revisions to Personnel policies 100 Employer Personnel Policies and
Acknowledgement; 101 Personnel Administrative Directive; 102 Computing Time for
Notice/Failure to Receive Notices; 103 Employee Change of Address; 104 Personnel
Files – Contents; 105 Personnel File & Confidential Information; and 106 Disposal of
Personnel Records.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: We are requesting the approval of the following personnel policies as
part of our five-year policy review process:

• • Policy 100: Employer Personnel Policies and Acknowledgement
• • Policy 101: Personnel Administrative Directive
• • Policy 102: Computing Time for Notice/Failure to Receive Notices
• • Policy 103: Employee Change of Address
• • Policy 104: Personnel Files – Contents
• • Policy 105: Personnel File & Confidential Information
• • Policy 106: Disposal of Personnel Records
• These policies have been reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure alignment with

current regulations and best practices. The revisions are intended to strengthen our
organizational framework and provide clear guidelines for personnel management
moving forward.

• Approval of these policies will ensure that our personnel guidelines are up to date and in
compliance with applicable laws and industry standards.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

      6  II



• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE              NUMBER:         102           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES    EFFECTIVE DATE:       11/18/08       

REVISED:  01/02/18 
       12/03/24 

AUTHORITY:                 BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER:  PAW AO 

SUBJECT:  Computing Time for Notice/Failure to Receive Notices 

1 PURPOSE: Determining the length of time periods for processing an action in these 
policies and responsibility for written communications. 

2 POLICY: 

2.1 Unless otherwise provided, the length of time for processing an action in these policies 
days shall be counted beginning with the calendar day following mailing or delivery of 
notice and concluding at 5:00 p.m., on the last day to be counted.  If the last day to be 
counted falls on a weekend or holiday, the period will end at 5:00 p.m., on the first 
business day following the last counted day. 

2.2 Written communications to employees considered to be routine in nature shall be delivered 
by regular mail to the current address on record or via email.  Written communications to 
employees identified as significant, important and/or time-sensitive shall be hand-delivered 
or sent by certified mail, return receipt required, to the current address on record or via 
email utilizing the read receipt function.  All written communications to applicants shall be 
hand-delivered or sent by U.S. mail to the address shown on the application for 
employment or sent via email as shown on the application. The employer is not responsible 
in the event mail is not received.  It is the employee’s responsibility to respond to all 
employer communications, including those mailed and/or emailed to the address on record, 
and the responsibility of the applicant to comply with all phases of the selection process 
within the specified time.  Failure to respond for any reason, including failure to receive 
written notice, may have an adverse effect on an individual’s employment status and/or 
result in disqualification from the selection and hiring process. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel Director and/or 
Administrative Officer  HR Director will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as 
necessary. 



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE   NUMBER:         100          
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:        08-03-10

REVISED:    12/15/16
01/02/18
12/03/24

AUTHORITY:     BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:   PAW AO

SUBJECT:   Employer Personnel Policies and Acknowledgement

1. PURPOSE
To ensure employees receive and acknowledge County Administrative Policies.

2. POLICY
All employees of Storey County are expected to read and familiarize themselves with the
contents of these policies.

3. PROCEDURES

A. After receiving and reviewing these policies, each employee is expected to sign an
acknowledgement form (reference:  Employer Personnel Policies – Acknowledgment and
Receipt).  The employee should return the signed acknowledgement form to the
Personnel HR Office for inclusion into his/her personnel file.

B. Employees who fail to comply with these policies may be subject to disciplinary action,
up to and including termination.

C. All changes, revisions, additions, and notices of deletions to these policies will be made
available to all employees.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel Director and/or 
Administrative Officer HR Director will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as 
necessary. 



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE   NUMBER:  101          
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/03/10     

REVISED:  12/15/16 
01/02/18 
12/03/24 

AUTHORITY:  BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW AO 

SUBJECT:  Personnel Administrative Directive  

1. PURPOSE
To establish authority to implement Personnel Program.

2. DEFINITION
Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer HR Director position is appointed as
described in Storey County Job Classification.

3. POLICY
The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer HR Director shall have the authority and
the duty to develop and promulgate administrative directives, interpretive memoranda, and
other administrative procedures to execute these policies, and to implement the employer’s
personnel program on a consistent basis.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer 
HR Director will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. 



Page 1 of 1 

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE              NUMBER        103           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:       12/15/16 

REVISED:         01/02/18 
        12/03/24 

AUTHORITY: BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER:  PAW AO 

SUBJECT:  Employee Change of Address 

1 PURPOSE: Keep employee’s personnel files up to date. 

2 POLICY: It is the responsibility of each employee to keep the employer and personnel 
informed, in writing, within 30 days of the event of any changes in the following: 

• Name

• Address

• Telephone Number

• Marital Status (for benefits and tax withholding purposes)

• Dependents

• Beneficiary designations

• Emergency Notification

• Any other information relating to employment status

Supervisors are requested to forward up-to-date employee information to the Personnel HR 
Office in a timely and confidential manner. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or 
Administrative Officer HR Director will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as 
necessary. 



Page 1 of 3 

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE              NUMBER         104           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:        01/02/18       

REVISED:           01/02/18 
        12/03/24 

AUTHORITY:                  BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER:  PAW AO 

SUBJECT:  Personnel Files – Contents 

1 PURPOSE: Guidelines to Contents of Employees Personnel File. 

2 POLICY: 

2.1 Contents of personnel files: 

2.1.1 The contents of each employee’s personnel file may include, at a minimum, the 
following: 

• Job description
• Position’s exempt/non-exempt status
• Job application/resume
• Job offer letter
• Employment contract/any agreement between the employee and the employer
• Signed acknowledgments including receipt of employer’s policies and procedures, new

employee orientation checklist, and related documents
• List of property issued (e.g., credit card, keys, uniforms, etc.)
• Emergency contact information
• Authorizations for release of information signed by employee
• Salary history record including rates of pay and other forms of compensation
• Driving record (if applicable)
• Vehicle registration/insurance (if applicable)
• Employment history of positions held including promotion(s), demotion(s), transfer(s),

layoff(s), termination(s)
• Training/education records including college transcripts
• Performance evaluations
• Performance improvement plan, letters of instruction, reports of coaching/counseling

session
• Documentation of oral reprimand(s), written reprimand(s), and other disciplinary

notices(s) and document(s).
• Letters of recognition, commendations, congratulations
• Separation checklists
• Exit interview (unless confidentiality was guaranteed)

2.1.2 The personnel file should NOT include any of the following: 
• Grievances or the responses thereto
• I-9 immigration form and supporting documents



Page 2 of 3 

• General correspondence
• Any document which describes a physical or mental condition of the employee or any

other individual. (Medical and related documents must be kept in a separate, locked file
to which access is strictly limited to those in a business “need-to-know” position.)

• Child support documents
• Workers’ compensation claims
• Investigation reports and supporting documents
• Employment examination results (written and/or oral testing)
• Employment interview questionnaires and supporting materials (including

documentation of remarks by oral examiners)

2.2 Maintenance of personnel files 
The employer shall maintain a master personnel file for each employee. An employee’s 
supervisor or manager may elect to maintain a duplicate copy of the documents; however, this 
does not supersede or eliminate the employer’s need to maintain the master personnel file for 
each employee.  At the time of hire, each new employee will complete all government-required 
documentation, all employer-required documentation, and when applicable, documentation 
pertaining to such matters as benefit plans enrollment and beneficiary designations.  Where 
required, the employee is responsible for providing a copy of his/her driver’s license or other 
required license or certificate.  Additionally, an employee must notify his/her supervisor or 
manager of any suspension, restriction, or revocation of his/her driver’s license, permit, or other 
license or certification required for the performance of his/her assigned job. 
2.3 Employee access 
An employee may view the contents of his/her personnel file upon verbal or written request to 
the Personnel HR Office. All inspections must be conducted in the presence of confidential 
Human Resources office staff.  An employee may request copies of any or all documents in 
his/her file but may not remove any documents from the file.  The employee must file a written 
request for copies of any document in  his/her file and the Personnel HR Office shall fill the 
request within (10) working days.  The employer will provide only one (1) set of copies to the 
employee without charge per year.  If the employee needs additional copies, s/he will be required 
to pay for them. 
2.4 Negative information 
The employer shall not put negative or derogatory material in an employee’s file unless the 
employee has had a reasonable opportunity to review the material beforehand.  The employer 
will require the employee to sign such material to acknowledge they have reviewed and not 
necessarily agree.  If the employee refuses to sign such material, the employer may place it in the 
employee’s file with a dated notation that the employee refused to sign such material after 
having been given an opportunity to do so.  Whenever possible, another supervisor or manager 
should be used as a witness to the employee’s refusal and should co-sign the entry along with the 
originating supervisor. 
Written warning letter corrective or disciplinary action shall remain in the employee’s personnel 
record for a minimum period of eighteen (18) months, after which the warning letter may be 
removed from the employee’s service record upon the written request of the employee, 



Page 3 of 3 

consultation with the supervisor, and approval of the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel 
HR Director. 
A Suspension shall remain in the employee’s service record for a minimum period of twenty-
four (24) months, after which the suspension may be removed from the employee’s personnel 
record upon the written request of the employee and approval of the Administrative Officer 
and/or Personnel HR Director. 
Suspensions imposed for violations of Title VII or for violations of safety rules, regulations, laws 
and/or procedures shall not be removed from the employee’s personnel record. 
2.5 Employee information submitted 
Statements by an employee submitted in rebuttal to adverse material placed in his/her personnel 
file will be included in the employee’s personnel file.  The employer may place other 
information submitted by the employee in the personnel file if the employer finds that such 
information is relevant to the employee’s work history with the employer. 
Any employee under this policy, upon reviewing his/her personnel file who finds inaccurate or 
misleading material, may prepare and present to the employee’s supervisor and the 
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel HR Director a clarifying statement pertaining to the 
document in question requesting removal of said document from his/her personnel file. 
Consultation with and approval from the supervisor or Personnel Officer HR Director is required 
prior to any action to remove material from a personnel file. 
2.6 Verification of employment 
Upon a request for verification of employment, the employer will provide only dates of 
employment, base salary, and job titles.  The employer will not give out an employee’s address 
or telephone number without proper authority, i.e., a written release signed by the employee, a 
court order, or a subpoena.  

. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel HR Director and/or Administrative 
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. 



Page 1 of 4 

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE              NUMBER        105           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:       05/06/08        

REVISED:                 12/15/16 
       01/02/17 
       12/03/24 

AUTHORITY:                 BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER:  PAW AO 

SUBJECT:  Personnel File & Confidential Information 

1 PURPOSE: Guidelines to Contents of Employees Personnel File. 

2 POLICY: 

2.1 Identification of confidential information 
The following types of personnel information and employment records concerning current 
employees, former employees, and applicants for employment that the employer maintains are 
confidential, as follows: 

All information related to an employment application including, but not limited to, 
letters of reference, résumés, or his/her status as an applicant for employment. 
All information that the employer received or compiled concerning the qualifications of 
an applicant or an employee including, but not limited to, reports by employers, law 
enforcement officials, or other individuals concerning the hiring, promotion, 
performance, conduct, or background of applicants or employees. 
Ratings, rankings, scoring sheets, or remarks by members of an evaluation board or 
individual interviewer concerning an applicant or results from any testing or 
employment screening process. 
Materials used during employment examinations including answers, rating guides, 
score sheets, etc., on any written exam or rating criteria for interviews. 
Information in an employee’s file or record of employment which relates to his/her: 

Performance; 

Salary history record including rates of pay and other forms of compensation; 

Conduct, including any proposed or imposed disciplinary action taken; 

Race, color, religion, ethnic identity or affiliation, age, gender, marital status, 
pregnancy, number and names of dependents, military/veteran status, living 
arrangements, membership in any organization, sexual orientation, domestic 
partnership, national origin, ancestry, genetic information, disability, gender 
identity or expression, political affiliation, , membership in the Nevada National 
Guard, any other class that becomes protected by federal and/or state law, date of 
birth, or social security number; 



Page 2 of 4 

Past or present home address, telephone number, post office box, or relatives; and 

All information concerning the voluntary or involuntary termination of an 
employee, other than the dates of actual employment. 

The name of an employee’s/former employee’s designated beneficiary. 
 All medical information concerning an employee or application including, but not 
limited to: 

Pre-employment and post-employment medical and psychological examinations; 

Disability and documentation relating to reasonable accommodation requested or 
granted;  

Drug, alcohol, and prohibited substances testing; 

Genetic information; 

Pregnancy, health care provider’s certification, and other communication; 

Subsequent Injury Fund Questionnaire; and 

Any other medical information that an employee or applicant has voluntarily 
provided or the employer has requested.  

Note: Notations of attendance sheets that an employee took sick leave are 
not a confidential record. 

All information contained in a confidential investigation file. The employer must keep 
all information and documents pertaining to an investigation separate from other 
personnel and employment records ensuring privacy of all employees, witnesses, and 
other individuals involved. Access is limited to only those individuals with a 
demonstrable business need-to-know.  
Grievance files that include notices, notes, and decisions of appeal will be maintained 
in a separate file with limited access to only those individuals with a demonstrable 
need-to-know. 

2.2 Access to confidential information 
Access to confidential records is restricted to the following unless specifically provided in 
a separate policy: 

The names of members of an evaluation panel shall not be released, nor shall tests that 
are governed by confidentiality agreements be released.  Access to the materials for an 
examination and information relating to an applicant that is relevant to a decision to 
hire that person, e.g., information described in item1-4 listed above in Section A is 
limited to: 

Employees with a need to know in order to fulfill the responsibilities assigned by 
employer; 

The employer’s manager/administrator, human resources director/manager, or 
his/her designee; 



Page 3 of 4 

Persons authorized pursuant to any state or federal law or court order; i.e., 
governmental/legal/auditing/investigating agencies; 

Counsel retained by or on behalf of the employer; and 

Any other parties with whom the employer has a contractual relationship in order 
to enable the employer to respond accurately and fully to any lawsuit, complaint, 
grievance, or other statutory appeal filed by or on behalf of an employee or former 
employee against the employer. 

Access to an employee’s personnel-related confidential file containing those items 
listed above in (Section 2.1, Items 5-9) is limited to: 

The employee; 

The employee’s representative when s/he presents a current signed authorization 
from the employee; 

The employee’s manager/supervisor, with a need-to-know, or as needed for a 
reasonable accommodation and human resources; 

Persons authorized pursuant to any state or federal law or court order; 

Counsel retained by or on behalf of the employer; 

Employer’s workers’ compensation carrier in order to address a claim filed for 
workers’ compensation; and 

Any other parties with whom the employer has a contractual relationship in order 
to enable the employer to respond accurately and fully to any lawsuit, complaint, 
grievance, or other statutory appeal filed by or on behalf of an employee or former 
employee against the employer. 

Access to an employee’s confidential file containing those items listed above in 
(Section 2.1, item 10) is limited to. 

Supervisors and managers, regarding necessary restrictions and accommodations 
in the employee’s duties; 

First-aid and safety personnel; 

Government officials investigating compliance with applicable laws, or requests; 

State workers’ compensation office officials; 

Insurance company employees when the company requires a medical examination 
to provide health or life insurance (29 C.F.R. Section 1630.14(c)(1); and 

Employer’s workers’ compensation carrier in order to address a claim filed for 
workers’ compensation. 

The results of a physical examination administered pursuant to NRS 617 may only be 
provided to: 

The examining physician; 

The employee; 



Page 4 of 4 

The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel HR Director, or his/her designee risk 
manager, and the insurer if an employee has filed a claim pursuant to NRS 617. 

Access to an employee’s personnel-related confidential file containing those items 
listed above in Section 2.1, items 8 and 9 is limited to: 

The employee’s department head or supervisor, Administrative Officer and/or 
Personnel HR Director, or his/her designee; 

Persons authorized pursuant to any state or federal law or court order; 

Counsel retained by or on behalf of the employer; and 

Any other parties with whom the employer has a contractual relationship in order 
to enable the employer to respond accurately and fully to any lawsuit, complaint, 
grievance, or other statutory appeal filed by or on behalf of an employee or former 
employee against the employer. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel HR Director and/or Administrative 
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. 



Page 1 of 2 

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE              NUMBER         106           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  EFFECTIVE DATE:       05/06/08       

REVISED:  01/02/18 
       12/03/24 

AUTHORITY: BOC 
COUNTY MANAGER:  PAW AO 

SUBJECT:  Disposal of Personnel Records 

1 PURPOSE: To ensure proper disposal of any records containing employee personal or 
financial information. A disposition schedule identifies the minimum time period the records 
must be retained, per NRS 239.080 or NAC 239; NSLA-Records Management-Local 
Government Records Retention Schedules, disposition must not occur before this time 
period expires.  

2 POLICY: 

2.1 NRS 239B.030 states that government agencies shall ensure that personal information, 
defined as social security numbers, driver’s license numbers, or bank account numbers, 
required to maintained by state or federal statute and received after January 1, 2007, be 
maintained in a confidential manner. 

2.2 If the agency has records containing personal information which is not required by specific 
state or federal statute and the information was received prior to January 1, 2007, the 
information must be obliterated or removed from documents and computer systems on or 
before January 1, 2017. 

2.3 To be in compliance with the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions (FACT) Act Disposal 
Rule, the employer shall dispose of sensitive information derived from consumer reports to 
ensure there will be no unauthorized access to – or use of – any confidential information. 
“Consumer Reports” are defined as reports which contain information from a consumer 
reporting company, such as reports obtained from third party agencies who conduct 
employment background checks on behalf of the employer. 

2.4 Sensitive information includes any and all documents containing employee information, 
which can include: 

• Employee name;

• Social security number;

• Driver’s license number;

• Phone number;

• Physical address;

• Email address; and

• Any other personal identifiers.
In addition, any identifying personal information, such as that described above, which is 
stored on electronic files, shall be destroyed or erased so that the information cannot be 
read or reconstructed. 



Page 2 of 2 

2.5 Method of disposal.  The employer shall dispose of sensitive information by shredding or 
burning any and all documents which contain personal information. Although the law 
specifically applies to consumer reports and the information derived from consumer 
reports, the employer shall, in accordance with good personnel practices, properly dispose 
of any records containing employee personal or financial information. An electronic record 
must be destroyed in accordance with the applicable schedule in a manner that ensures the 
information cannot be retrieved or reconstructed, including, without limitation, 
overwriting, degaussing and the physical destruction of the storage media. 

2.6 The employer will determine whether the disposal of consumer report documents will take 
place by utilizing an internal process and equipment or by procuring the services of a 
document destruction contractor to dispose of material that is specifically identified as 
consumer report information. The employer will exercise due diligence to ensure that a 
contractor disposes of documents as required by law. Due diligence may consist of 
requiring that the disposal company be certified by a recognized trade association to ensure 
the disposal company complies with the disposal rule requirements. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel HR Director and/or Administrative 
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary. 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0 min

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Approval of claims in the amount of $13,852,497.95.

• Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

• Prepared by: Cory Y Wood

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Please find attached claims.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      6  III





















































































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to postpone the public hearing for the 
proposed revised Old Corner Bar lease to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC  and related agenda 
items to the December 17, 2024, Storey County Board of Commissioners meeting to 
allow for legal postings.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner ______, approval to postpone the public 
hearing for the proposed revised Old Corner Bar lease to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC  and 
related agenda items to the December 17, 2024, Storey County Board of Commissioners 
meeting to allow for legal postings.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: These items were originally put on the November 5, 2024, agenda. 
During that meeting the agenda items were postponed to November 19 or December 3, 
2024, due to additional information brought to staff’s attention. With time constraints 
between the parties, it has become necessary to ask for an additional postponement to the 
December 17, 2024, meeting.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

       9



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-753, a resolution setting
grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045
for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding prior
year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with the addition of
Project Manager at grade 133 and Accounting/Payroll Specialist at grade 122.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve Resolution No. 24-753, a
resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution
per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and
superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with
the addition of Project Manager at grade 133 and Accounting/Payroll Specialist at grade
122.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: The reclassification for the Accounting/Payroll Technician grade 122
was approved in the budget process to support the level of duties and responsibilities
assigned. Through the budget process a new position was approved for the Operations
and Projects Program. Project Manager is recommended to be allocated at grade 133.
Both classes are aligned with other non-represented classes within the county.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      10



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



RESOLUTION NO.  24-753

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES FIXED 
BY ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION PER NRS 245.045 FOR 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS.  

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY, 
NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 245.045, the Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed and non-
represented County employees by the enactment of a resolution.

WHEREAS, the salaries of all appointed officials and non-represented county 
employees, are consistently to be derived from a similar step and grade range 
salary system shown in the General Salary Schedule A for appointed officials 
and non-represented employees of the county and General Salary Schedule B 
for intermittent/less than parttime employees of the county.

WHEREAS, the General Salary Schedule step and grade ranges (Schedules A and 
B) will be consistent with the AFSCME general employees salary schedule and will
be adjusted accordingly on a year-by-year basis to account for cost-of-living and to
maintain consistency in the county’s classification plan.

WHEREAS, the salary grade range of appointed officials and non-represented 
employees shall be as follows for the 2024-25 fiscal period:

Position Salary Grade
Accounting / Payroll Technician Grade 122
Administrative Assistant I Grade 110
Administrative Assistant II Grade 116
Administrative Assistant III Grade 119
Administrative Officer Grade 140
Assistant Sheriff Grade 144
Automotive/Equipment Manager Grade 133
Bailiff/Court Services Officer Grade 124
Buildings and Grounds Manager Grade 133
Building Official Grade 144
Business Development Officer Grade 140
Chief Deputy District Attorney Grade 153
Civil/Records Division Manager Grade 130
Code Enforcement Officer Grade 124
Community Development Director Grade 152
Community Resource Coordinator Grade 130
Comptroller Grade 154
Cook Grade 115



Corrections Officer Grade 117
County Manager Grade 161
Culinary Coordinator Grade 119
Cyber Security Officer Grade 133
Deputy District Attorney Grade 152
Dispatch Manager Grade 140
Emergency Management Director Grade 144
Events and Assistant Tourism Director Grade 140
Event and Site Manager Grade 124
Grants Manager Grade 135
HR Director Grade 144
HR Generalist Grade 124
Information Technology Director Grade 152
Information Technology Officer Grade 140
Kitchen Aide Grade 110
Management Analyst Grade 131
Meals on Wheels Coordinator Grade 110
Planning Manager Grade 144
Program Coordinator (Senior Services) Grade 113
Project Manager Grade 133
Public Relations Officer Grade 124
Public Works Director Grade 152
Roads Manager Grade 133
Network Security Administrator Grade 140
Senior Center Site Manager Grade 119
Senior Planner Grade 140
Senior Services Director Grade 144
Tourism Director Grade 152
Undersheriff Grade 148

WHEREAS, the salary grade and step range of casual intermittent less-than part-time 
positions in the General Salary Schedule B shall be as follows for the 2024-25 fiscal 
period:

IPT Administrative Assistant I Grade 110
IPT Administrative Assistant II Grade 116
IPT Evidence Custodian Grade 115
IPT Facilities Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Homemaker Grade 110
IPT Inmate Work Crew Coordinator Grade 117
IPT Lifeguard Grade 100
IPT Maintenance Worker/Heavy Equipment 
Operator

Grade 118

IPT Park Maintenance Worker Grade 105
IPT Pool Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Pool Supervisor Grade 108



IPT Program Coordinator (Senior Services) Grade 113 
IPT Road Worker Grade 110
IPT Volunteer Coordinator (Sheriff Office) Grade 117
IPT Tourism Assistant Grade 110
IPT Tourism Transportation Driver Grade 110
IPT Transportation Driver Grade 110
IPT Visitor Liaison Grade 110

WHEREAS, the salary grade and step range of casual, intermittent, less-than part-time 
Deputy Sheriff positions shall be as outlined in Appendix A of the Storey County 
Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association/Nevada Association of Police and Sheriff’s 
Officers (NAPSO) for the 2024-25 fiscal period.

WHEREAS, the flat-rate salaries for the positions below shall be set by the Storey County 
Board of Commissioners as follows:

$30,000 
Government Affairs Director

(salary split 50/50 with SCSD)
Justice of the Peace $ 89,500 

WHEREAS, salaries are set by the Nevada Legislature and County Commissioners 
for elected positions as follows:

Assessor $71,361 
Commissioners $30,806.31 
Clerk/Treasurer $71,361 
District Attorney $122,678 
Recorder $71,361 
Sheriff $96,937 

WHEREAS, if there is a PERS increase, said increase will be shared equally between Storey 
County and the employee in accordance with NRS 286.421 (3) (a) (1) and will be so reflected on 
Salary Schedule A. Salary Schedule B and casual, intermittent, less than part-time Deputy 
Sheriffs will not be impacted by any changes in PERS contributions. 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD   
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt Resolution 24-753 
providing for the setting of salaries for the appointed officials and non-represented employees.

This resolution shall be effective on the 3rd day of December 2024.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of December 2024.

THOSE VOTING AYE:

_____________________________

          _________________________________________

THOSE VOTING NAY:

      ________________________

      ________________________
STOREY COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:    ______________________________

     Jay Carmona, Chairman    

ATTEST: ______________________________
      CLERK TO THE BOARD



Non-Represented Non-Represented Pay Schedule
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

110 $ 40,472.71 $ 19.46 $ 41,889.25 $ 20.14 $ 43,355.38 $ 20.84 $ 44,872.82 $ 21.57 $ 46,443.36 $ 22.33 $ 48,068.87 $ 23.11 $ 49,751.29 $ 23.92 $ 51,492.58 $ 24.76 $ 53,294.83 $ 25.62 $ 55,160.13 $ 26.52
111 $ 41,484.53 $ 19.94 $ 42,936.48 $ 20.64 $ 44,439.25 $ 21.37 $ 45,994.64 $ 22.11 $ 47,604.44 $ 22.89 $ 49,270.59 $ 23.69 $ 50,995.07 $ 24.52 $ 52,779.89 $ 25.37 $ 54,627.18 $ 26.26 $ 56,539.13 $ 27.18
112 $ 42,521.62 $ 20.44 $ 44,009.90 $ 21.16 $ 45,550.23 $ 21.90 $ 47,144.49 $ 22.67 $ 48,794.54 $ 23.46 $ 50,502.35 $ 24.28 $ 52,269.95 $ 25.13 $ 54,099.39 $ 26.01 $ 55,992.87 $ 26.92 $ 57,952.63 $ 27.86
113 $ 43,584.69 $ 20.95 $ 45,110.14 $ 21.69 $ 46,689.01 $ 22.45 $ 48,323.11 $ 23.23 $ 50,014.44 $ 24.05 $ 51,764.94 $ 24.89 $ 53,576.71 $ 25.76 $ 55,451.89 $ 26.66 $ 57,392.71 $ 27.59 $ 59,401.45 $ 28.56
114 $ 44,674.30 $ 21.48 $ 46,237.88 $ 22.23 $ 47,856.22 $ 23.01 $ 49,531.18 $ 23.81 $ 51,264.77 $ 24.65 $ 53,059.04 $ 25.51 $ 54,916.12 $ 26.40 $ 56,838.16 $ 27.33 $ 58,827.49 $ 28.28 $ 60,886.46 $ 29.27
115 $ 45,791.15 $ 22.01 $ 47,393.84 $ 22.79 $ 49,052.62 $ 23.58 $ 50,769.47 $ 24.41 $ 52,546.38 $ 25.26 $ 54,385.53 $ 26.15 $ 56,289.02 $ 27.06 $ 58,259.14 $ 28.01 $ 60,298.19 $ 28.99 $ 62,408.64 $ 30.00
116 $ 46,935.93 $ 22.57 $ 48,578.70 $ 23.36 $ 50,278.95 $ 24.17 $ 52,038.71 $ 25.02 $ 53,860.07 $ 25.89 $ 55,745.17 $ 26.80 $ 57,696.26 $ 27.74 $ 59,715.62 $ 28.71 $ 61,805.67 $ 29.71 $ 63,968.87 $ 30.75
117 $ 48,109.32 $ 23.13 $ 49,793.14 $ 23.94 $ 51,535.92 $ 24.78 $ 53,339.68 $ 25.64 $ 55,206.55 $ 26.54 $ 57,138.80 $ 27.47 $ 59,138.63 $ 28.43 $ 61,208.50 $ 29.43 $ 63,350.79 $ 30.46 $ 65,568.08 $ 31.52
118 $ 49,312.06 $ 23.71 $ 51,037.98 $ 24.54 $ 52,824.30 $ 25.40 $ 54,673.15 $ 26.29 $ 56,586.72 $ 27.21 $ 58,567.25 $ 28.16 $ 60,617.11 $ 29.14 $ 62,738.70 $ 30.16 $ 64,934.57 $ 31.22 $ 67,207.27 $ 32.31
119 $ 50,544.87 $ 24.30 $ 52,313.94 $ 25.15 $ 54,144.93 $ 26.03 $ 56,040.00 $ 26.94 $ 58,001.40 $ 27.89 $ 60,031.46 $ 28.86 $ 62,132.56 $ 29.87 $ 64,307.20 $ 30.92 $ 66,557.95 $ 32.00 $ 68,887.47 $ 33.12
120 $ 51,808.49 $ 24.91 $ 53,621.79 $ 25.78 $ 55,498.56 $ 26.68 $ 57,441.01 $ 27.62 $ 59,451.44 $ 28.58 $ 61,532.23 $ 29.58 $ 63,685.88 $ 30.62 $ 65,914.87 $ 31.69 $ 68,221.89 $ 32.80 $ 70,609.66 $ 33.95
121 $ 53,103.69 $ 25.53 $ 54,962.33 $ 26.42 $ 56,886.00 $ 27.35 $ 58,877.02 $ 28.31 $ 60,937.72 $ 29.30 $ 63,070.54 $ 30.32 $ 65,277.99 $ 31.38 $ 67,562.73 $ 32.48 $ 69,927.43 $ 33.62 $ 72,374.88 $ 34.80
122 $ 54,431.29 $ 26.17 $ 56,336.38 $ 27.08 $ 58,308.17 $ 28.03 $ 60,348.94 $ 29.01 $ 62,461.18 $ 30.03 $ 64,647.32 $ 31.08 $ 66,909.97 $ 32.17 $ 69,251.81 $ 33.29 $ 71,675.64 $ 34.46 $ 74,184.28 $ 35.67
123 $ 55,792.07 $ 26.82 $ 57,744.80 $ 27.76 $ 59,765.87 $ 28.73 $ 61,857.68 $ 29.74 $ 64,022.68 $ 30.78 $ 66,263.47 $ 31.86 $ 68,582.70 $ 32.97 $ 70,983.11 $ 34.13 $ 73,467.50 $ 35.32 $ 76,038.89 $ 36.56
124 $ 57,186.87 $ 27.49 $ 59,188.41 $ 28.46 $ 61,260.02 $ 29.45 $ 63,404.10 $ 30.48 $ 65,623.25 $ 31.55 $ 67,920.07 $ 32.65 $ 70,297.27 $ 33.80 $ 72,757.67 $ 34.98 $ 75,304.20 $ 36.20 $ 77,939.85 $ 37.47
125 $ 58,616.53 $ 28.18 $ 60,668.12 $ 29.17 $ 62,791.49 $ 30.19 $ 64,989.21 $ 31.24 $ 67,263.83 $ 32.34 $ 69,618.06 $ 33.47 $ 72,054.70 $ 34.64 $ 74,576.61 $ 35.85 $ 77,186.79 $ 37.11 $ 79,888.33 $ 38.41
126 $ 60,081.97 $ 28.89 $ 62,184.83 $ 29.90 $ 64,361.30 $ 30.94 $ 66,613.94 $ 32.03 $ 68,945.43 $ 33.15 $ 71,358.51 $ 34.31 $ 73,856.08 $ 35.51 $ 76,441.01 $ 36.75 $ 79,116.46 $ 38.04 $ 81,885.53 $ 39.37
127 $ 61,584.01 $ 29.61 $ 63,739.44 $ 30.64 $ 65,970.35 $ 31.72 $ 68,279.30 $ 32.83 $ 70,669.06 $ 33.98 $ 73,142.49 $ 35.16 $ 75,702.47 $ 36.40 $ 78,352.06 $ 37.67 $ 81,094.39 $ 38.99 $ 83,932.69 $ 40.35
128 $ 63,123.59 $ 30.35 $ 65,332.94 $ 31.41 $ 67,619.58 $ 32.51 $ 69,986.28 $ 33.65 $ 72,435.80 $ 34.82 $ 74,971.04 $ 36.04 $ 77,595.02 $ 37.31 $ 80,310.85 $ 38.61 $ 83,121.74 $ 39.96 $ 86,031.00 $ 41.36
129 $ 64,701.71 $ 31.11 $ 66,966.26 $ 32.20 $ 69,310.08 $ 33.32 $ 71,735.94 $ 34.49 $ 74,246.71 $ 35.70 $ 76,845.34 $ 36.94 $ 79,534.93 $ 38.24 $ 82,318.63 $ 39.58 $ 85,199.79 $ 40.96 $ 88,181.78 $ 42.40
130 $ 66,319.24 $ 31.88 $ 68,640.42 $ 33.00 $ 71,042.84 $ 34.16 $ 73,529.35 $ 35.35 $ 76,102.87 $ 36.59 $ 78,766.47 $ 37.87 $ 81,523.29 $ 39.19 $ 84,376.60 $ 40.57 $ 87,329.78 $ 41.99 $ 90,386.32 $ 43.45
131 $ 67,977.22 $ 32.68 $ 70,356.43 $ 33.83 $ 72,818.91 $ 35.01 $ 75,367.56 $ 36.23 $ 78,005.42 $ 37.50 $ 80,735.63 $ 38.82 $ 83,561.36 $ 40.17 $ 86,486.00 $ 41.58 $ 89,513.02 $ 43.04 $ 92,645.99 $ 44.54
132 $ 69,676.65 $ 33.50 $ 72,115.33 $ 34.67 $ 74,639.38 $ 35.88 $ 77,251.75 $ 37.14 $ 79,955.56 $ 38.44 $ 82,754.01 $ 39.79 $ 85,650.39 $ 41.18 $ 88,648.16 $ 42.62 $ 91,750.84 $ 44.11 $ 94,962.12 $ 45.65
133 $ 71,418.55 $ 34.34 $ 73,918.21 $ 35.54 $ 76,505.34 $ 36.78 $ 79,183.04 $ 38.07 $ 81,954.44 $ 39.40 $ 84,822.84 $ 40.78 $ 87,791.64 $ 42.21 $ 90,864.35 $ 43.68 $ 94,044.61 $ 45.21 $ 97,336.18 $ 46.80
134 $ 73,204.03 $ 35.19 $ 75,766.15 $ 36.43 $ 78,417.98 $ 37.70 $ 81,162.61 $ 39.02 $ 84,003.30 $ 40.39 $ 86,943.42 $ 41.80 $ 89,986.43 $ 43.26 $ 93,135.97 $ 44.78 $ 96,395.71 $ 46.34 $ 99,769.57 $ 47.97
135 $ 75,034.13 $ 36.07 $ 77,660.32 $ 37.34 $ 80,378.44 $ 38.64 $ 83,191.68 $ 40.00 $ 86,103.39 $ 41.40 $ 89,117.01 $ 42.84 $ 92,236.10 $ 44.34 $ 95,464.36 $ 45.90 $ 98,805.62 $ 47.50 $ 102,263.81 $ 49.17
136 $ 76,909.99 $ 36.98 $ 79,601.83 $ 38.27 $ 82,387.90 $ 39.61 $ 85,271.47 $ 41.00 $ 88,255.98 $ 42.43 $ 91,344.95 $ 43.92 $ 94,542.02 $ 45.45 $ 97,850.98 $ 47.04 $ 101,275.77 $ 48.69 $ 104,820.42 $ 50.39
137 $ 78,832.74 $ 37.90 $ 81,591.90 $ 39.23 $ 84,447.60 $ 40.60 $ 87,403.27 $ 42.02 $ 90,462.38 $ 43.49 $ 93,628.56 $ 45.01 $ 96,905.56 $ 46.59 $ 100,297.25 $ 48.22 $ 103,807.65 $ 49.91 $ 107,440.94 $ 51.65
138 $ 80,803.56 $ 38.85 $ 83,631.68 $ 40.21 $ 86,558.78 $ 41.61 $ 89,588.35 $ 43.07 $ 92,723.94 $ 44.58 $ 95,969.28 $ 46.14 $ 99,328.20 $ 47.75 $ 102,804.70 $ 49.43 $ 106,402.86 $ 51.16 $ 110,126.95 $ 52.95
139 $ 82,823.66 $ 39.82 $ 85,722.47 $ 41.21 $ 88,722.77 $ 42.66 $ 91,828.06 $ 44.15 $ 95,042.05 $ 45.69 $ 98,368.51 $ 47.29 $ 101,811.41 $ 48.95 $ 105,374.80 $ 50.66 $ 109,062.94 $ 52.43 $ 112,880.15 $ 54.27
140 $ 84,894.26 $ 40.81 $ 87,865.54 $ 42.24 $ 90,940.83 $ 43.72 $ 94,123.76 $ 45.25 $ 97,418.11 $ 46.84 $ 100,827.74 $ 48.47 $ 104,356.72 $ 50.17 $ 108,009.19 $ 51.93 $ 111,789.53 $ 53.74 $ 115,702.15 $ 55.63
141 $ 87,016.59 $ 41.83 $ 90,062.18 $ 43.30 $ 93,214.34 $ 44.81 $ 96,476.85 $ 46.38 $ 99,853.55 $ 48.01 $ 103,348.42 $ 49.69 $ 106,965.60 $ 51.43 $ 110,709.40 $ 53.23 $ 114,584.24 $ 55.09 $ 118,594.70 $ 57.02
142 $ 89,192.02 $ 42.88 $ 92,313.73 $ 44.38 $ 95,544.71 $ 45.93 $ 98,888.78 $ 47.54 $ 102,349.89 $ 49.21 $ 105,932.14 $ 50.93 $ 109,639.75 $ 52.71 $ 113,477.15 $ 54.56 $ 117,448.85 $ 56.47 $ 121,559.55 $ 58.44
143 $ 91,421.82 $ 43.95 $ 94,621.58 $ 45.49 $ 97,933.34 $ 47.08 $ 101,361.01 $ 48.73 $ 104,908.63 $ 50.44 $ 108,580.45 $ 52.20 $ 112,380.75 $ 54.03 $ 116,314.07 $ 55.92 $ 120,385.08 $ 57.88 $ 124,598.55 $ 59.90
144 $ 93,707.36 $ 45.05 $ 96,987.14 $ 46.63 $ 100,381.67 $ 48.26 $ 103,895.04 $ 49.95 $ 107,531.36 $ 51.70 $ 111,294.96 $ 53.51 $ 115,190.30 $ 55.38 $ 119,221.95 $ 57.32 $ 123,394.71 $ 59.32 $ 127,713.53 $ 61.40
145 $ 96,050.04 $ 46.18 $ 99,411.80 $ 47.79 $ 102,891.19 $ 49.47 $ 106,492.41 $ 51.20 $ 110,219.62 $ 52.99 $ 114,077.33 $ 54.84 $ 118,070.02 $ 56.76 $ 122,202.47 $ 58.75 $ 126,479.56 $ 60.81 $ 130,906.35 $ 62.94
146 $ 98,451.31 $ 47.33 $ 101,897.09 $ 48.99 $ 105,463.49 $ 50.70 $ 109,154.71 $ 52.48 $ 112,975.13 $ 54.31 $ 116,929.26 $ 56.22 $ 121,021.80 $ 58.18 $ 125,257.55 $ 60.22 $ 129,641.56 $ 62.33 $ 134,179.01 $ 64.51
147 $ 100,912.59 $ 48.52 $ 104,444.51 $ 50.21 $ 108,100.07 $ 51.97 $ 111,883.59 $ 53.79 $ 115,799.50 $ 55.67 $ 119,852.49 $ 57.62 $ 124,047.33 $ 59.64 $ 128,388.97 $ 61.73 $ 132,882.59 $ 63.89 $ 137,533.50 $ 66.12
148 $ 103,435.37 $ 49.73 $ 107,055.64 $ 51.47 $ 110,802.58 $ 53.27 $ 114,680.66 $ 55.13 $ 118,694.48 $ 57.06 $ 122,848.78 $ 59.06 $ 127,148.51 $ 61.13 $ 131,598.69 $ 63.27 $ 136,204.66 $ 65.48 $ 140,971.81 $ 67.77
149 $ 106,021.28 $ 50.97 $ 109,732.04 $ 52.76 $ 113,572.64 $ 54.60 $ 117,547.70 $ 56.51 $ 121,661.87 $ 58.49 $ 125,920.03 $ 60.54 $ 130,327.24 $ 62.66 $ 134,888.69 $ 64.85 $ 139,609.79 $ 67.12 $ 144,496.13 $ 69.47
150 $ 108,671.80 $ 52.25 $ 112,475.34 $ 54.07 $ 116,411.97 $ 55.97 $ 120,486.39 $ 57.93 $ 124,703.39 $ 59.95 $ 129,068.03 $ 62.05 $ 133,585.39 $ 64.22 $ 138,260.90 $ 66.47 $ 143,100.03 $ 68.80 $ 148,108.53 $ 71.21
151 $ 111,388.61 $ 53.55 $ 115,287.22 $ 55.43 $ 119,322.28 $ 57.37 $ 123,498.55 $ 59.37 $ 127,821.01 $ 61.45 $ 132,294.72 $ 63.60 $ 136,925.06 $ 65.83 $ 141,717.42 $ 68.13 $ 146,677.53 $ 70.52 $ 151,811.25 $ 72.99
152 $ 114,173.32 $ 54.89 $ 118,169.39 $ 56.81 $ 122,305.32 $ 58.80 $ 126,586.03 $ 60.86 $ 131,016.52 $ 62.99 $ 135,602.09 $ 65.19 $ 140,348.16 $ 67.48 $ 145,260.36 $ 69.84 $ 150,344.47 $ 72.28 $ 155,606.52 $ 74.81
153 $ 117,027.67 $ 56.26 $ 121,123.63 $ 58.23 $ 125,362.96 $ 60.27 $ 129,750.65 $ 62.38 $ 134,291.92 $ 64.56 $ 138,992.15 $ 66.82 $ 143,856.88 $ 69.16 $ 148,891.87 $ 71.58 $ 154,103.08 $ 74.09 $ 159,496.70 $ 76.68
154 $ 119,953.35 $ 57.67 $ 124,151.72 $ 59.69 $ 128,497.03 $ 61.78 $ 132,994.41 $ 63.94 $ 137,649.23 $ 66.18 $ 142,466.95 $ 68.49 $ 147,453.28 $ 70.89 $ 152,614.13 $ 73.37 $ 157,955.65 $ 75.94 $ 163,484.10 $ 78.60
155 $ 122,952.18 $ 59.11 $ 127,255.51 $ 61.18 $ 131,709.46 $ 63.32 $ 136,319.27 $ 65.54 $ 141,090.45 $ 67.83 $ 146,028.63 $ 70.21 $ 151,139.63 $ 72.66 $ 156,429.52 $ 75.21 $ 161,904.54 $ 77.84 $ 167,571.20 $ 80.56
156 $ 126,026.00 $ 60.59 $ 130,436.91 $ 62.71 $ 135,002.20 $ 64.90 $ 139,727.27 $ 67.18 $ 144,617.73 $ 69.53 $ 149,679.35 $ 71.96 $ 154,918.12 $ 74.48 $ 160,340.27 $ 77.09 $ 165,952.17 $ 79.78 $ 171,760.50 $ 82.58
157 $ 129,176.64 $ 62.10 $ 133,697.82 $ 64.28 $ 138,377.25 $ 66.53 $ 143,220.45 $ 68.86 $ 148,233.16 $ 71.27 $ 153,421.32 $ 73.76 $ 158,791.07 $ 76.34 $ 164,348.76 $ 79.01 $ 170,100.97 $ 81.78 $ 176,054.50 $ 84.64
158 $ 132,406.05 $ 63.66 $ 137,040.25 $ 65.88 $ 141,836.67 $ 68.19 $ 146,800.94 $ 70.58 $ 151,938.99 $ 73.05 $ 157,256.85 $ 75.60 $ 162,760.83 $ 78.25 $ 168,457.48 $ 80.99 $ 174,353.48 $ 83.82 $ 180,455.84 $ 86.76
159 $ 135,716.20 $ 65.25 $ 140,466.28 $ 67.53 $ 145,382.60 $ 69.90 $ 150,470.99 $ 72.34 $ 155,737.48 $ 74.87 $ 161,188.28 $ 77.49 $ 166,829.87 $ 80.21 $ 172,668.93 $ 83.01 $ 178,712.33 $ 85.92 $ 184,967.27 $ 88.93
160 $ 139,109.12 $ 66.88 $ 143,977.93 $ 69.22 $ 149,017.17 $ 71.64 $ 154,232.77 $ 74.15 $ 159,630.91 $ 76.75 $ 165,218.00 $ 79.43 $ 171,000.63 $ 82.21 $ 176,985.66 $ 85.09 $ 183,180.16 $ 88.07 $ 189,591.46 $ 91.15
161 $ 142,586.84 $ 68.55 $ 147,577.39 $ 70.95 $ 152,742.59 $ 73.43 $ 158,088.58 $ 76.00 $ 163,621.68 $ 78.66 $ 169,348.45 $ 81.42 $ 175,275.65 $ 84.27 $ 181,410.27 $ 87.22 $ 187,759.64 $ 90.27 $ 194,331.23 $ 93.43
162 $ 146,151.51 $ 70.27 $ 151,266.81 $ 72.72 $ 156,561.14 $ 75.27 $ 162,040.79 $ 77.90 $ 167,712.21 $ 80.63 $ 173,582.15 $ 83.45 $ 179,657.53 $ 86.37 $ 185,945.54 $ 89.40 $ 192,453.64 $ 92.53 $ 199,189.51 $ 95.76
163 $ 149,805.31 $ 72.02 $ 155,048.48 $ 74.54 $ 160,475.20 $ 77.15 $ 166,091.81 $ 79.85 $ 171,905.03 $ 82.65 $ 177,921.70 $ 85.54 $ 184,148.96 $ 88.53 $ 190,594.18 $ 91.63 $ 197,264.97 $ 94.84 $ 204,169.26 $ 98.16
164 $ 153,550.43 $ 73.82 $ 158,924.70 $ 76.41 $ 164,487.07 $ 79.08 $ 170,244.10 $ 81.85 $ 176,202.65 $ 84.71 $ 182,369.74 $ 87.68 $ 188,752.67 $ 90.75 $ 195,359.02 $ 93.92 $ 202,196.60 $ 97.21 $ 209,273.48 $ 100.61
165 $ 157,389.20 $ 75.67 $ 162,897.81 $ 78.32 $ 168,599.25 $ 81.06 $ 174,500.21 $ 83.89 $ 180,607.73 $ 86.83 $ 186,928.99 $ 89.87 $ 193,471.50 $ 93.02 $ 200,243.00 $ 96.27 $ 207,251.50 $ 99.64 $ 214,505.33 $ 103.13



IPT Non-Represented
1 2 3 4 5 6

97 $ 29,661.90 $ 30,700.05 $ 31,774.59 $ 32,886.68 $ 34,037.71 $ 35,229.02
98 $ 30,418.83 $ 31,483.48 $ 32,585.39 $ 33,725.89 $ 34,906.30 $ 36,128.00
99 $ 31,199.39 $ 32,291.37 $ 33,421.57 $ 34,591.34 $ 35,802.02 $ 37,055.10
100 $ 32,003.64 $ 33,123.76 $ 34,283.09 $ 35,482.99 $ 36,724.89 $ 38,010.28
101 $ 32,831.53 $ 33,980.61 $ 35,169.92 $ 36,400.89 $ 37,674.92 $ 38,993.55
102 $ 33,683.04 $ 34,861.96 $ 36,082.13 $ 37,345.00 $ 38,652.07 $ 40,004.91
103 $ 34,558.25 $ 35,767.79 $ 37,019.65 $ 38,315.35 $ 39,656.39 $ 41,044.34
104 $ 35,433.43 $ 36,673.61 $ 37,957.17 $ 39,285.69 $ 40,660.67 $ 42,083.80
105 $ 36,332.29 $ 37,603.92 $ 38,920.04 $ 40,282.25 $ 41,692.12 $ 43,151.34
106 $ 37,254.78 $ 38,558.69 $ 39,908.25 $ 41,305.03 $ 42,750.70 $ 44,246.98
107 $ 38,200.93 $ 39,537.96 $ 40,921.79 $ 42,354.05 $ 43,836.44 $ 45,370.72
108 $ 39,170.74 $ 40,541.71 $ 41,960.67 $ 43,429.30 $ 44,949.32 $ 46,522.56
109 $ 40,187.85 $ 41,594.41 $ 43,050.22 $ 44,556.98 $ 46,116.48 $ 47,730.57
110 $ 41,230.63 $ 42,673.69 $ 44,167.27 $ 45,713.14 $ 47,313.10 $ 48,969.04
111 $ 42,261.39 $ 43,740.54 $ 45,271.46 $ 46,855.96 $ 48,495.92 $ 50,193.28
112 $ 43,317.91 $ 44,834.03 $ 46,403.23 $ 48,027.34 $ 49,708.29 $ 51,448.09
113 $ 44,400.88 $ 45,954.90 $ 47,563.33 $ 49,228.03 $ 50,951.03 $ 52,734.32
114 $ 45,510.89 $ 47,103.76 $ 48,752.41 $ 50,458.73 $ 52,224.78 $ 54,052.66
115 $ 46,648.65 $ 48,281.36 $ 49,971.20 $ 51,720.21 $ 53,530.40 $ 55,403.98
116 $ 47,814.88 $ 49,488.42 $ 51,220.50 $ 53,013.22 $ 54,868.69 $ 56,789.09
117 $ 49,010.25 $ 50,725.60 $ 52,501.01 $ 54,338.54 $ 56,240.38 $ 58,208.81
118 $ 50,235.51 $ 51,993.75 $ 53,813.52 $ 55,696.99 $ 57,646.40 $ 59,664.02
119 $ 51,491.40 $ 53,293.61 $ 55,158.88 $ 57,089.44 $ 59,087.57 $ 61,155.64
120 $ 52,778.69 $ 54,625.94 $ 56,537.85 $ 58,516.68 $ 60,564.76 $ 62,684.53
121 $ 54,098.14 $ 55,991.59 $ 57,951.28 $ 59,979.59 $ 62,078.87 $ 64,251.63
122 $ 55,450.60 $ 57,391.38 $ 59,400.08 $ 61,479.08 $ 63,630.86 $ 65,857.94
123 $ 56,836.86 $ 58,826.16 $ 60,885.08 $ 63,016.06 $ 65,221.60 $ 67,504.37
124 $ 58,257.79 $ 60,296.81 $ 62,407.21 $ 64,591.44 $ 66,852.15 $ 69,191.98
125 $ 59,714.23 $ 61,804.22 $ 63,967.36 $ 66,206.24 $ 68,523.45 $ 70,921.77
126 $ 61,207.10 $ 63,349.34 $ 65,566.56 $ 67,861.39 $ 70,236.54 $ 72,694.81
127 $ 62,737.26 $ 64,933.07 $ 67,205.74 $ 69,557.94 $ 71,992.44 $ 74,512.20
128 $ 64,305.68 $ 66,556.41 $ 68,885.87 $ 71,296.88 $ 73,792.27 $ 76,374.99
129 $ 65,913.36 $ 68,220.32 $ 70,608.03 $ 73,079.31 $ 75,637.09 $ 78,284.39
130 $ 67,561.17 $ 69,925.83 $ 72,373.23 $ 74,906.30 $ 77,528.02 $ 80,241.50
131 $ 69,250.20 $ 71,673.97 $ 74,182.56 $ 76,778.93 $ 79,466.19 $ 82,247.53
132 $ 70,981.46 $ 73,465.80 $ 76,037.11 $ 78,698.42 $ 81,452.85 $ 84,303.71
133 $ 72,755.98 $ 75,302.45 $ 77,938.03 $ 80,665.86 $ 83,489.17 $ 86,411.29
134 $ 74,574.89 $ 77,185.00 $ 79,886.48 $ 82,682.51 $ 85,576.40 $ 88,571.57
135 $ 76,439.26 $ 79,114.64 $ 81,883.65 $ 84,749.58 $ 87,715.81 $ 90,785.87
136 $ 78,350.26 $ 81,092.50 $ 83,930.74 $ 86,868.31 $ 89,908.71 $ 93,055.53
137 $ 80,309.01 $ 83,119.83 $ 86,029.01 $ 89,040.03 $ 92,156.44 $ 95,381.91
138 $ 82,316.74 $ 85,197.81 $ 88,179.74 $ 91,266.04 $ 94,460.34 $ 97,766.46
139 $ 84,374.67 $ 87,327.76 $ 90,384.25 $ 93,547.69 $ 96,821.86 $ 100,210.62
140 $ 86,484.04 $ 89,510.97 $ 92,643.84 $ 95,886.39 $ 99,242.41 $ 102,715.90
141 $ 88,646.12 $ 91,748.74 $ 94,959.93 $ 98,283.54 $ 101,723.47 $ 105,283.79



142 $ 90,862.28 $ 94,042.45 $ 97,333.94 $ 100,740.62 $ 104,266.56 $ 107,915.89
143 $ 93,133.84 $ 96,393.52 $ 99,767.30 $ 103,259.16 $ 106,873.22 $ 110,613.79
144 $ 95,462.18 $ 98,803.38 $ 102,261.48 $ 105,840.64 $ 109,545.06 $ 113,379.14
145 $ 97,848.74 $ 101,273.44 $ 104,818.00 $ 108,486.65 $ 112,283.66 $ 116,213.61
146 $ 100,294.97 $ 103,805.28 $ 107,438.47 $ 111,198.81 $ 115,090.76 $ 119,118.94
147 $ 102,802.34 $ 106,400.40 $ 110,124.42 $ 113,978.79 $ 117,968.03 $ 122,096.92
148 $ 105,372.37 $ 109,060.43 $ 112,877.53 $ 116,828.24 $ 120,917.22 $ 125,149.32
149 $ 108,006.69 $ 111,786.94 $ 115,699.47 $ 119,748.97 $ 123,940.18 $ 128,278.08
150 $ 110,706.85 $ 114,581.61 $ 118,591.97 $ 122,742.69 $ 127,038.67 $ 131,485.03
151 $ 113,474.53 $ 117,446.16 $ 121,556.78 $ 125,811.25 $ 130,214.66 $ 134,772.16
152 $ 116,311.40 $ 120,382.30 $ 124,595.68 $ 128,956.55 $ 133,470.01 $ 138,141.46
153 $ 119,219.20 $ 123,391.87 $ 127,710.58 $ 132,180.44 $ 136,806.75 $ 141,595.00
154 $ 122,199.66 $ 126,476.65 $ 130,903.34 $ 135,484.95 $ 140,226.93 $ 145,134.87
155 $ 125,254.65 $ 129,638.56 $ 134,175.92 $ 138,872.06 $ 143,732.59 $ 148,763.25
156 $ 128,386.04 $ 132,879.54 $ 137,530.33 $ 142,343.89 $ 147,325.93 $ 152,482.33
157 $ 131,595.67 $ 136,201.52 $ 140,968.58 $ 145,902.48 $ 151,009.07 $ 156,294.38
158 $ 134,885.56 $ 139,606.55 $ 144,492.79 $ 149,550.02 $ 154,784.28 $ 160,201.73
159 $ 138,257.71 $ 143,096.73 $ 148,105.12 $ 153,288.80 $ 158,653.90 $ 164,206.79
160 $ 141,714.16 $ 146,674.15 $ 151,807.75 $ 157,121.03 $ 162,620.25 $ 168,311.97
161 $ 145,257.01 $ 150,341.01 $ 155,602.94 $ 161,049.04 $ 166,685.75 $ 172,519.76
162 $ 148,888.43 $ 154,099.52 $ 159,493.00 $ 165,075.26 $ 170,852.90 $ 176,832.75
163 $ 152,610.65 $ 157,952.01 $ 163,480.35 $ 169,202.15 $ 175,124.23 $ 181,253.57
164 $ 156,425.91 $ 161,900.82 $ 167,567.34 $ 173,432.19 $ 179,502.32 $ 185,784.90
165 $ 160,336.56 $ 165,948.34 $ 171,756.54 $ 177,768.01 $ 183,989.89 $ 190,429.54



7 8 9 10
$ 36,462.05 $ 37,738.22 $ 39,059.05 $ 40,426.12
$ 37,392.49 $ 38,701.24 $ 40,055.77 $ 41,457.73
$ 38,352.04 $ 39,694.35 $ 41,083.66 $ 42,521.57
$ 39,340.63 $ 40,717.55 $ 42,142.67 $ 43,617.66
$ 40,358.31 $ 41,770.84 $ 43,232.82 $ 44,745.98
$ 41,405.06 $ 42,854.24 $ 44,354.15 $ 45,906.55
$ 42,480.88 $ 43,967.74 $ 45,506.62 $ 47,099.34
$ 43,556.73 $ 45,081.22 $ 46,659.07 $ 48,292.13
$ 44,661.64 $ 46,224.82 $ 47,842.68 $ 49,517.16
$ 45,795.64 $ 47,398.48 $ 49,057.42 $ 50,774.44
$ 46,958.69 $ 48,602.24 $ 50,303.34 $ 52,063.95
$ 48,150.84 $ 49,836.12 $ 51,580.37 $ 53,385.69
$ 49,401.13 $ 51,130.18 $ 52,919.73 $ 54,771.91
$ 50,682.96 $ 52,456.86 $ 54,292.86 $ 56,193.10
$ 51,950.04 $ 53,768.29 $ 55,650.18 $ 57,597.94
$ 53,248.77 $ 55,112.47 $ 57,041.41 $ 59,037.86
$ 54,580.02 $ 56,490.32 $ 58,467.47 $ 60,513.84
$ 55,944.50 $ 57,902.55 $ 59,929.13 $ 62,026.66
$ 57,343.11 $ 59,350.13 $ 61,427.37 $ 63,577.34
$ 58,776.71 $ 60,833.89 $ 62,963.07 $ 65,166.79
$ 60,246.10 $ 62,354.72 $ 64,537.14 $ 66,795.95
$ 61,752.27 $ 63,913.58 $ 66,150.57 $ 68,465.83
$ 63,296.08 $ 65,511.45 $ 67,804.36 $ 70,177.50
$ 64,878.50 $ 67,149.23 $ 69,499.46 $ 71,931.95
$ 66,500.42 $ 68,827.95 $ 71,236.93 $ 73,730.21
$ 68,162.96 $ 70,548.66 $ 73,017.88 $ 75,573.50
$ 69,867.02 $ 72,312.38 $ 74,843.30 $ 77,462.84
$ 71,613.70 $ 74,120.18 $ 76,714.39 $ 79,399.40
$ 73,404.04 $ 75,973.17 $ 78,632.24 $ 81,384.36
$ 75,239.15 $ 77,872.49 $ 80,598.04 $ 83,418.97
$ 77,120.12 $ 79,819.33 $ 82,613.00 $ 85,504.46
$ 79,048.11 $ 81,814.80 $ 84,678.32 $ 87,642.07
$ 81,024.34 $ 83,860.18 $ 86,795.30 $ 89,833.13
$ 83,049.94 $ 85,956.69 $ 88,965.17 $ 92,078.95
$ 85,126.17 $ 88,105.59 $ 91,189.29 $ 94,380.93
$ 87,254.33 $ 90,308.24 $ 93,469.02 $ 96,740.44
$ 89,435.69 $ 92,565.94 $ 95,805.74 $ 99,158.95
$ 91,671.57 $ 94,880.09 $ 98,200.88 $ 101,637.91
$ 93,963.37 $ 97,252.09 $ 100,655.91 $ 104,178.86
$ 96,312.46 $ 99,683.39 $ 103,172.32 $ 106,783.35
$ 98,720.27 $ 102,175.48 $ 105,751.61 $ 109,452.94
$ 101,188.28 $ 104,729.88 $ 108,395.43 $ 112,189.26
$ 103,718.00 $ 107,348.12 $ 111,105.31 $ 114,994.01
$ 106,310.96 $ 110,031.83 $ 113,882.96 $ 117,868.86
$ 108,968.71 $ 112,782.62 $ 116,730.01 $ 120,815.57



$ 111,692.93 $ 115,602.19 $ 119,648.27 $ 123,835.95
$ 114,485.26 $ 118,492.24 $ 122,639.48 $ 126,931.86
$ 117,347.42 $ 121,454.57 $ 125,705.48 $ 130,105.16
$ 120,281.07 $ 124,490.90 $ 128,848.09 $ 133,357.79
$ 123,288.12 $ 127,603.20 $ 132,069.30 $ 136,691.73
$ 126,370.31 $ 130,793.26 $ 135,371.03 $ 140,109.02
$ 129,529.57 $ 134,063.08 $ 138,755.31 $ 143,611.74
$ 132,767.82 $ 137,414.69 $ 142,224.20 $ 147,202.04
$ 136,086.99 $ 140,850.05 $ 145,779.81 $ 150,882.10
$ 139,489.20 $ 144,371.30 $ 149,424.30 $ 154,654.16
$ 142,976.41 $ 147,980.60 $ 153,159.91 $ 158,520.49
$ 146,550.83 $ 151,680.10 $ 156,988.90 $ 162,483.52
$ 150,214.58 $ 155,472.08 $ 160,913.62 $ 166,545.60
$ 153,969.96 $ 159,358.91 $ 164,936.46 $ 170,709.24
$ 157,819.21 $ 163,342.89 $ 169,059.89 $ 174,976.99
$ 161,764.69 $ 167,426.45 $ 173,286.38 $ 179,351.40
$ 165,808.79 $ 171,612.11 $ 177,618.52 $ 183,835.16
$ 169,954.03 $ 175,902.43 $ 182,059.00 $ 188,431.08
$ 174,202.89 $ 180,300.00 $ 186,610.49 $ 193,141.86
$ 178,557.96 $ 184,807.47 $ 191,275.74 $ 197,970.39
$ 183,021.90 $ 189,427.67 $ 196,057.64 $ 202,919.65
$ 187,597.45 $ 194,163.36 $ 200,959.08 $ 207,992.65
$ 192,287.36 $ 199,017.43 $ 205,983.05 $ 213,192.46
$ 197,094.56 $ 203,992.87 $ 211,132.62 $ 218,522.28



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and approve
the amended contract between Department of Health and Human Services Division of
Health Care Financing and Policy due to the increase in medical care costs from
$10,357.36 to $41,120.88.

• Recommended motion: Approve

• Prepared by: Stacy York

Department: Health and Community Services     Contact Number: 
7758470957

• Staff Summary: This is the first amendment to the original revenue interlocal agreement
which provides the non-federal share for medical care of indigent persons within the
Medicaid County Match Program. This amendment increases the maximum amount from
$10,357.36 to $41,120.88 due to increased medical care costs.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: increase in line item of 30,763.52

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      11



CETS #: 28568 

Agency Reference #: 

Revised:  August 2019 Page 1 of 3 

AMENDMENT # 1 

TO INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES 
Between the State of Nevada 
Acting By and Through Its 

Public Entity #1: Department of Health and Human Services 
Division of Health Care Financing and Policy 

Address: 4070 Silver Sage Dr. 
City, State, Zip Code: Carson City, NV 89701 
Contact: Timothy Ryan, Certified Contract Manager 
Phone: (775) 684-3676 (main)
Fax: 
Email: dhcfppcu@dhcfp.nv.gov 

Public Entity #2: Department of Health and Human Services 
Division of Welfare and Supportive Services 

Address: 1470 E. College Parkway 
City, State, Zip Code: Carson City, NV 89706 
Contact: Monique Pomerleau, Certified Contract Manager 
Phone: (775) 684-0500 (main)
Fax: 
Email: dwsscontracts@dwss.nv.gov 

Public Entity #3: Storey County 

Address: PO Box 176 
City, State, Zip Code: Virginia City, NV 89440 
Contact: Brandie Lopez 
Phone: (775) 847-0968
Fax: 
Email: blopez@storeycounty.org 

1. AMENDMENTS.  For and in consideration of mutual promises and other valuable consideration, all provisions of the
original Contract dated 01/29/2024, attached hereto as Exhibit A, remain in full force and effect with the exception of
the following:

A. Provide a brief explanation for contract amendment.

This is the first amendment to the original revenue interlocal agreement which provides the non-federal share
for medical care of indigent persons within the Medicaid County Match Program.  This amendment increases
the maximum amount from $10,357.36 to $41,120.88 due to increased medical care costs.

mailto:dhcfppcu@dhcfp.nv.gov
mailto:dwsscontracts@dwss.nv.gov
mailto:blopez@storeycounty.org


CETS #: 28568 

Agency Reference #: 

Revised:  August 2019 Page 2 of 3 

B. Current Contract Language:

7. CONSIDERATION.  The parties agree that the services specified in Section 6, Incorporated Documents at a
cost as noted below:

Not to Exceed $.08 (eight cents) Each $100.00 of assessed valuation of all taxable property as 
established by NRS 428.285 

Total Contract Not to Exceed: $10,357.36 

Any intervening end to a biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not changing the 
overall Contract term) or a termination as the result of legislative appropriation may require. 

C. Amended Contract Language:

7. CONSIDERATION.  The parties agree that the services specified in Section 6, Incorporated Documents at a
cost as noted below:

Not to Exceed $.08 (eight cents) Each $100.00 of assessed valuation of all taxable property as 
established by NRS 428.285 

Total Contract Not to Exceed: $41,120.88 

Any intervening end to a biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not changing the 
overall Contract term) or a termination as the result of legislative appropriation may require. 

2. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS.  Exhibit A (original Contract) is attached hereto, incorporated by reference
herein and made a part of this amended contract.

3. REQUIRED APPROVAL.  This amendment to the original Contract shall not become effective until and unless
approved by the Nevada State Board of Examiners.



CETS #: 28568 

Agency Reference #: 

Revised:  August 2019 Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this amendment to the original contract to be signed and intend to 
be legally bound thereby. 

STOREY COUNTY 

Authorized Signature Date Title 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (DHHS) 
DIVISION OF WELFARE AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES (DWSS) 

Administrator 

Robert H. Thompson Date Title 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (DHHS) 
DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCING AND POLICY (DHCFP) 

Administrator 

Stacie Weeks, JD, MPH Date Title 

APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS 

Signature – Board of Examiners 

On: 

Date 

Approved as to form by: 

On: 
Deputy Attorney General for Attorney General Date 



EXHIBIT A 























Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of the Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout
Storey County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion Only

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and highways throughout the county

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      13



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Safety Manual
as approved by the Safety Committee.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to proceed with approval and adoption
of the Storey County Safety Manual.

• Prepared by: Adam Wilson

Department: Emergency Management     Contact Number: 7756347443

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      15



1 

Storey County Safety 
Committee 

SAFETY MANUAL 

Adopted: 



2 

Contents 
Safety Program Policy Statement ........................................................................................................ 3 
1. Mission Statement......................................................................................................................... 4 
2. Safety Committee Structure ........................................................................................................ 4 
3. Meetings ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
4. Roles and Responsibilities ............................................................................................................ 4 
5. Safety Training ............................................................................................................................. 7 
6. Safety Rules and Discipline .......................................................................................................... 7 
7.      Identifying and Evaluating Workplace Risks ............................................................................ 8 
8.     Safety Communication .................................................................................................................. 8 
9.     Emergency Evacuation ................................................................................................................. 8 
10.   Accident Investigations ................................................................................................................. 9 

Appendix A: Forms…………………………………………………………………………………..10 

Appointment of Officers …………………………………………………………..………………...11 

Safety Inspection Checklist ……………………………………………….……..………………… 12 

Accident Investigation Form ………….…………………………………………..….…………….13 

Employee Unsafe/ Hazardous Conditions Report …………………………..……..….…………. 14 

New Employee Orientation Checklist …………………………………………...…...…………… 15 

Documented Verbal Warning ………………………………………………………..……………. 17 

Written Reprimand ……………………………………………………………………..…..……... 18 

Last Chance  Performance/ Behavior Agreement ……………...………………………….…..… 19 

Notice Of Injury Or Occupational Disease…………………………………………………………21 



3 

Safety Program Policy Statement 

To reduce incidents of on-the-job injuries, the 1993 legislature changed the law to require 
every employer doing business in the State of Nevada, to establish and carry out the 
requirements of a written safety program. Employers who do not establish and carry out 
the requirements of a written safety program will be cited by the Occupational Safety and 
Health Enforcement Section of the Division of Industrial Relations of the Nevada 
Department of Business and Industry.  

Storey County’s Board of County Commissioners has endorsed and mandated a 
committee that includes all department heads, or designated representatives, to comprise 
the Storey County Safety Committee. The Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners shall appoint a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer; positions 
which shall be documented in Addendum "A" of this manual. Annually, every department 
head shall submit a list to the Safety Director indicating the department's designated 
representative and alternate. This group shall be named the Storey County Safety 
Committee.  

The following is a written Safety Program developed by the Safety Committee of Storey 
County and adopted by the Storey County Commissioners.  

PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY AND COMPLY WITH ITS CONTENTS. 

Recognizing our obligation to provide the safest possible working conditions for our 
employees, this Safety Program is written. All employees are expected to follow the 
provisions set forth in this program as a condition of continued employment. Changes and 
additions may be added in the future, dependent upon requirements by local, state, and 
federal regulations.  

Commission Chairman Date 



4 

1. Mission Statement

The Safety Program in Storey County is designed to increase the efforts of all employees in having an injury and 
illness free workplace. All employees are expected to familiarize themselves with the requirements of this 
program. 

2. Safety Committee Structure

While all employees are ultimately responsible for safety and health in the workplace, the Storey County 
Emergency Manager or their designated representative is responsible for coordination of safety issues for the 
County and shall hold the position as Safety Director.  

The Safety Committee officers are comprised of the Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer. Officer 
positions are appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners. The Chair and Vice Chair are to be 
seated for terms of two (2) years each. The appointments are to be staggered; with the Chair being appointed in 
one year and the Vice Chair in the alternating year. The Secretary/Treasurer is a one (1) year appointment. 

There is no term limit for these positions. In the event a vacancy should occur due to employment termination, 
the Safety Director shall appoint an interim Officer who will fill the vacancy until a new vote occurs within the 
Safety Committee and the new nominee be presented to the Board of County Commissioners for approval.  

3. Meetings

Meetings of the Safety Committee shall be held quarterly, on the second Tuesdays of February, May, August, 
and November. There shall be a special meeting the second Tuesday in September for voting among Committee 
members for the officer positions that are to be presented to the Board of County Commissioners at the first 
October Board of County Commissioners’ meeting. 

Meetings are not subject to Nevada Open Meeting Law (OML). 

4. Roles and Responsibilities

SAFETY DIRECTOR:

• Establish subcommittees and assign specific tasks to individuals on the committee.
• Review and evaluate results of the Safety Program.
• Maintain and aid in compliance with up-to-date information on local, state, and federal standards, laws,

regulations, and best management practices of the Safety Program.
• Coordinate with the Human Resources Director to maintain required safety posters, a list of the required

posters for each building, where to post them, and when to update them.
• Plan and coordinate safety training for employees.
• Reply to individuals who may have safety concerns.
• Assist, as needed, in completing the following documents, “Safety Inspection Checklist”, “Accident

Investigation Form”, and “Employee Unsafe/Hazardous Conditions Report” (See Appendix A).
• Recommend corrective actions, as needed, for all reports, inspections, and investigations, and ensure

corrective actions are implemented.



5 

It is not the intention of this plan to mandate that the Safety Director personally carries out each of these duties. 
The Safety Director shall use subcommittees and technical experts to carry out the Safety Program requirements. 
It is up to the Safety Director to ensure that tasks are accomplished within a given time frame and within specific 
criteria to address safety concerns and/or issues. 

CHAIR: 

• Preside over Safety Committee meetings.
• Present Safety Committee agenda items which need approval of the Storey County Board of County

Commissioners at Board of County Commissioner meetings.
• Ensure approved agenda action items are signed and completed.

VICE CHAIR: 

• Prepare agendas, with the coordination of the Safety Director, and submit them to the Secretary/Treasurer
for dissemination.

• Perform all duties required of the Chair or Secretary/Treasurer, in the event of their absence.

SECRETARY/TREASURER: 

• Send out calendar invitations for Safety Committee meetings two weeks prior to scheduled meetings,
which shall include previous meeting minutes and new agenda items.

• Take minutes during meetings.
• Prepare and present financial updates for each quarterly meeting.
• Work with the Safety Committee Representative from the Commissioner’s Office to prepare and submit

annual Safety Committee budget requests to the Comptroller’s Office.

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR: 

• Provide general safety orientation for new employees upon hire. This training shall be documented in
personnel files.

• Coordinate training to department head level positions on the proper process to follow when a workers’
compensation injury occurs. This should include an overview of the appropriate forms, how to complete
them, and who receives them when completed.

• Coordinate with the Safety Director to maintain required safety posters, a list of the required posters for
each building, where to post them, and when to update them.

• Provide necessary forms to employees when an injury or accident occurs.
• Track special training in areas where there have been recurring injuries, OSHA reportable injuries, as

reported through submitted “Notice of Injury or Occupational Disease" (C-1) forms (See Appendix
A).



6 

DEPARTMENT HEADS: 

Each Department Head, or their qualified assigned representative, is responsible for attending all scheduled 
Safety Committee meetings. 

• Ensure safety policies and procedures are followed and enforce the rules set forth in this Safety Program.
• Ensure employees go through identified training upon their initial hire and are properly trained on

equipment in which they may operate.
• Work closely with Human Resources to ensure that employee training documents are up to date in

personnel files.
• Coordinate with the Safety Director in investigating injuries, accidents, and identifying the corrective

action necessary to prevent a similar incident from occurring.
• Assist employees, as needed, in completing the “C-1” form in the event of accident, and ensure the form

is signed and submitted to the Human Resources Department.
• Encourage employee input in reporting unsafe or hazardous conditions.
• Conduct routine inspections of the workplace and, in adherence to forms provided within this document,

assess hazardous conditions.
• Conduct department specific safety training in accordance with local, state, and federal requirements.

EMPLOYEES: 

• Comply with this Safety Program and stay informed about safety and health regulations in the workplace.
• Attend assigned training sessions.
• Ensure each task assigned can be completed in a safe manner.
• Ensure that machines and equipment are maintained in safe operating condition and not tamper with,

remove destroy, or otherwise interfere with the use of any safety device or safeguard.
• Personal protective equipment will be provided by the County and must be worn or used in any area

where it is required.
• Get help lifting any item which is bulky, awkward, or heavy which cannot be lifted safely.
• If a repetitive task causes employees discomfort, or they feel it is unsafe or unhealthy, they must report

this condition to their Department Head immediately.
• Must not engage in horseplay, roughhousing, fighting, or throwing articles.
• Must not use recreational or prescription drugs which impair function and/or alcohol in workplace.
• Immediately report to Department Heads any unsafe, unhealthful, or hazardous conditions.
• If involved in an incident, complete a “C-1” form, and submit it to the Human Resources Department.

Ensure that the medical provider completes and submits an “Employee Claim for
Compensation/Report of Initial Treatment” (C-4) form (Medical provider has this form).

• If witness to accident or injury, assist fellow employees in completing a “C-1” form.
• In case of an emergency, dial 911.

5. Safety Training

Safety education and training for employees commences at the time of employment. Prior to staff beginning any 
assigned task, supervisors must ensure that employees are provided the following instruction during new 
employee orientation as part of the “New Employee Orientation Checklist” (See Appendix A). 



7 

The County provides several different types of safety training for employees. Documentation of completed 
training courses shall be sent to the Human Resources Department and kept in personnel files. 

• A general safety orientation for new employees is provided by Human Resources     upon hire. The initial
training is to be documented on the “New Employee Orientation Checklist” form and signed by the
employee and returned to Human Resources to be retained in their personnel file.

• Specific training on how to safely perform assigned duties is provided by respective Department Heads
and/or supervisors.

• Special training when working with hazardous materials or complex types of machinery or other
equipment is provided by respective Department Heads and/or supervisors.

• Special training in areas where there have been recurring injuries, OSHA reportable injuries, shall be
tracked by Human Resources as reported to him/her through submitted “C-1” forms.

• Training in using any required personal protective equipment (e.g., respirators, hearing protection, etc.)
is provided by respective Department Heads and/or supervisors.

Additional training should be provided whenever an employee's job changes, new hazardous materials are 
introduced, new machines/tools are used, new safety protection equipment is needed, or if there are incidents of 
recurring injuries or as requested by employees. Employees that do not seem to understand proper safety 
procedures should be retrained.  

Whenever personnel are used from a temporary employment service, Department Heads must provide specialized 
training for jobs they will be performing before they begin work or as soon as possible thereafter.  

Effective safety training will result in the following benefits to the County: 

• Reduction in injuries
• Reduction in damage to property and supplies
• Reduction in retraining time
• Reduction in liability
• Encouragement for employees in asking for help
• Increased production
• Increased morale
• Decreased absenteeism
• Healthier employees

 6. Safety Rules and Discipline

NRS 618.383 dictates every employer in the State of Nevada shall establish a written Safety Program. Employees 
need to know and follow County safety rules and Department Heads must enforce them. Unsafe procedures will 
not be tolerated. Department Heads are expected to take immediate steps to correct unsafe behavior. 

General Safety Rules: 

• Comply with safety instructions.
• Report hazardous conditions.
• Follow team-lift guidelines.
• Maintain safe standards in your work area.
• Wear provided personal protective equipment.



8 

• Report all injuries and near misses immediately.

General Disciplinary Action: 

Disciplinary action will be conducted in accordance with County Policy 1001. If a Collective Bargaining 
Agreement is in place, the Department Head will follow the established steps outlined in the Agreement, ensuring 
adherence to the appropriate chain of progressive disciplinary action. (Disciplinary forms included in Appendix 
A). 

7. Identifying and Evaluating Workplace Risks
Inspection of the workplace is the primary tool to identify unsafe conditions and practices, which may include 
buildings, equipment, apparatus, vehicles, and personal protective equipment, etc.  

Department Heads are responsible for routinely inspecting all work areas and need to document their inspections 
of the workplace by using the “Safety Inspection Checklist”.  

8. Safety Communication

Employees should submit safety concerns and suggestions by completing an “Employee Unsafe/ Hazardous 
Condition Report” form and emailing it to their Department Head and Safety Director. 

The Safety Director will respond, in writing, to the employee’s submittal indicating what action has been taken. 

9. Emergency Evacuation

Employees must be familiarized with evacuation routes for their work areas. Part of the “New Employee 
Orientation Checklist” includes emergency evacuation procedures. Emergency evacuation routes shall be 
posted in a conspicuous location. The locations of fire extinguishers are identified on the evacuation plans. 

Evacuation: 

1. Find the nearest exit and leave quickly.
2. Get to a safe area.
3. Contact Department Head or supervisor.

Shelter in Place: 

1. Secure and lock doors and windows.
2. Cover windows if possible.
3. Stay away from windows and doors.
4. Do not open the door/windows until law enforcement advises.

Hazardous Materials: 

1. Close windows and doors.
2. Turn off HVAC if applicable.
3. Attempt to seal cracks around doors and windows (duct tape, cloth).



9 

10. Accident Investigations

Accidents, injuries, and near misses are to be reported immediately by completion of a “C-1” form and/or an 
“Accident Investigation Form”. The “C-1” form shall be completed by the Employee, Department Head, or 
witness; signed; and then submitted to the Human Resources Department. The “Accident Investigation Form” 
shall be completed by the Employee, Department Head, or witness and submitted to the Safety Director via email. 



10 

Appendix A 
Forms 



11 

Appointment of Officers 

The Storey County Commissioners appoint ______________________________ as Chairman, 
_______________________ as Vice Chairman, and ________________________ as Secretary/ Treasurer of the 
Storey County Safety Committee from October 1, 20____ through September 30, 20____ at the Commissioners 
Meeting dated __________________, 20_____. 

___________________________________ 
County Commissioner 

The Officers are as follows: 

Chairman: __________________________________________ 

Cell Phone: ______________________________ Email: __________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 

Vice-Chair: __________________________________________ 

Cell Phone: ______________________________ Email: __________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 

Secretary/ Treasurer: __________________________________________ 

Cell Phone: ______________________________ Email: __________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 



12 

Safety Inspection Checklist 
    Yes    No Comments 

1. All exits are unblocked and clearly marked.

2. No obstructions in passageways.

3. All electric boxes covered/ closed.

4. Proper PPE is provided and used.

5. First aid supplies available and adequate.

6. AEDs in building and functioning.

7. Fire extinguishers are maintained and clear of obstructions.

8. Flammable/ Combustible materials stored properly.

9. Hazardous material containers labeled.
(location of MSDS is known) 

10. Emergency evacuation routes posted.

11. Employee lifting procedures known.

12. Low clearance marked appropriately.

13. Machinery/ equipment/ tools/ vehicles used appropriately.

14. Machinery/ equipment/ tools/ vehicles in safe condition.

15. Machinery has guards as needed.

16. Electrical cords in good condition.

17. No trip or slip hazards present.

18. No sharp edges present.

19. Weather related hazards

20. Areas where reoccurring near misses/ injuries happen.

21. Any deviations from acceptable safe practice.

22. Other: ________________________________

23. Other: ________________________________

24. Other: ________________________________

25. Other: ________________________________

26. Other: ________________________________

27. Other: ________________________________

____________________________________________________ _________________________ 
Signature Date 



13 

Accident Investigation Form 
(To be completed by Supervisor) 

Injury 
Near Miss 

Employee Name: ___________________________________________________________ 
Employee Number:   _____________________ Job Position: ________________________ 
Date and Time of Accident: ___________________________________________________________ 
Location of Accident: ___________________________________________________________ 
Witness(es): ___________________________________________________________ 
First Aid given:    Yes     No   Paramedics called: Yes No 

How did this accident occur (please use separate page if needed)? 

What were the cause(s) of the accident, if known? 

What recommendations do you have to prevent reoccurrences? 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Department Head Signature Date 

Completed By Safety Director: 
Description of Corrective Action Taken:  

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Safety Director Signature Date 



14 

Employee Unsafe/ Hazardous Condition Report 

This form is for use by employees who wish to provide a hazardous condition suggestion or report of an unsafe 
workplace condition or practice.  

Name (optional): _____________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
Department: ___________________________________________ 

Description of unsafe or hazardous condition: 

Location of condition: 

Causes or other contributing factors: 

Employee’s Recommendation for Solution: 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Department Head Signature Date 

Completed By Safety Director: 
Investigation: 

Corrective Action Completed: 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Safety Director Signature Date



15 

New Employee Orientation Checklist 

Name: _____________________________________ Department: ____________________________ 
Job Title: _____________________________________ Start Date:  ____________________________ 

The New Employee Orientation Checklist is designed to assist in acquainting a new employee with the workplace and 
work procedures. The items on his form should be completed during the first week the employee is on the job. Please 
initial each item as it is completed on the line in front of it. If an item is not applicable, write “n/a” and initial. Return this 
form to the Human Resources Office no later than: ___________________ (two weeks after start date). 

SUPERVISOR 
General  
________ Introduce new employee to staff in department. 
________ Show location of restrooms, lunch area, parking, bulletin board(s). 
________ Tour the work area and facilities. 
________ Explain work schedule start/ end. 
________ Explain break times, lunch time, and duration.  
________ Discuss back-up coverage – who covers for them and who they cover for. 
________ Cover procedure for reporting absence, tardiness, sickness, etc.  
________ Explain requesting leave in Time & Attendance. 
________ Discuss leaving work area during work hours. 
________ Stress importance of keeping department and human resources up to date on address and 

phone number. 
________ Cover paydays – how, when, and where employee will be paid – availability of direct 

deposit. 
________ Explain dress guidelines, uniforms, and employee’s responsibility.  
________ Review the chain of command and introduce employee to supervisors in the chair 

hierarchy. 
________ Review accident reporting procedures.  
________ Introduce safety representative.  
________ Review emergency evacuation routes and procedures. 
________ Review internal department policies and procedures, including safety rules. 
________ Indicate location of department copy of policies manual. 
________ Review county’s safety manual. 
________ Indicate location and purpose of MSDS’s (Material Safety Data Sheet). 
________ Remind employee to address any questions or concerns to the supervisor. 
________ Introduce to members of other departments the employee might encounter in normal 

course of work. 
Job 
________ Provide current copy of job description delineating primary job responsibilities and 

assignments (supervisor & employee must sign and return to Human Resources office). 
________ Confidentiality form with policy. 
________ Explain kinds of tasks not performed without specific directions. 
________ Define performance expectations – work standards expected, quality and quantity of 

work, and performance evaluation procedure. 



16 

New Employee Orientation Checklist Continued

________ Review blank performance evaluation form. 

________ Introduce new employee to person(s) who will train them. 
_________ Explain check in/out procedures for tools and supplies; discuss where/ how to get office supplies 

and purchasing procedures. 
_________ Demonstrate how to use multiline phone. 
_________ Discuss importance of good customer service in person or on the phone. 
_________ Explain how to answer the phone, how to take messages, and where to leave them. 
_________ Demonstrate the proper procedure to respond to an angry citizen. 
_________ Cover care and maintenance of equipment or vehicles. 
_________ Clarify computer use/ restrictions, no expectation of privacy. 
_________ Other (Please specify) ____________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Employee’s Signature  Date 

____________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Supervisor’s Signature  Date 



17 

STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
    FORM:      1001F 

      CREATED: 01/06/2019 
     REVISED:  8/21/18 – 12/04/18 

       AUTHORITY:    BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:          PAW 

Documented Verbal Warning 
Today’s Date: _____________________________ Department: _______________________________ 

Date of documented verbal warning: _____________________________________________________ 

Name of employee receiving verbal warning: ______________________________________________ 

Name of employee/ supervisor issuing verbal warning: ______________________________________ 

Detailed explanation of the performance-related behavior(s) or job-related behavior(s): 

Department or county policies violated: 

Details of specific chances that must occur to correct the subject behavior. Details must be SMART 
(Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and Timely). This section should specify what exactly do I 
want to achieve; where; how; when; and with whom. 

Timeframe for these changes to occur (even if repeated from question 8 above). 

Periodic review needed:  yes no If yes, what frequency and duration of reviews: _____________ 

Consequences if the required change does not occur: 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 
Note: By employee’s signature above, receipt of this verbal warning is acknowledged but agreement with the action taken is not necessarily indicated.  



18 

STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
    FORM:      1001F1 

      CREATED: 01/06/2019 
     REVISED:  8/21/18 – 12/04/18 

       AUTHORITY:    BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:          PAW 

 

Written Reprimand 
Today’s Date: _____________________________ Department: _______________________________ 

Date of written reprimand: _____________________________________________________________ 

Name of employee receiving written reprimand: ____________________________________________ 

Name of employee/ supervisor issuing written reprimand: ____________________________________ 

Detailed explanation of the performance-related behavior(s) or job-related behavior(s): 

Department or county policies violated: 

Details of specific chances that must occur to correct the subject behavior. Details must be SMART 
(Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and Timely). This section should specify what exactly do I 
want to achieve; where; how; when; and with whom. 

Timeframe for these changes to occur (even if repeated from question 8 above). 

Periodic review needed:  yes no If yes, what frequency and duration of reviews: _____________ 

Consequences if the required change does not occur: 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Supervisor Signature Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Signature Date 
Note: By employee’s signature above, receipt of this verbal warning is acknowledged but agreement with the action taken is not necessarily indicated 



19 

STOREY COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
    FORM:      1001F3 

      CREATED: 01/06/2009 
     REVISED:  1/02/18 – 12/04/18 

       AUTHORITY:    BOCC 
COUNTY MANAGER:          PAW 

Last Chance Performance/ Behavior Agreement 
Effective _____________________ (date), this agreement is entered into as a condition of continuing 
employment for )_______________________ (employee’s name), hereinafter “employee,” in his/her 
position as ______________________________ (employee’s current job title) with Storey County, 
hereinafter, “employer.” In lieu of terminating his/her employment, employee agrees to refrain from 
inappropriate conduct and/ or performance standards as follows: employee understands that his/ her 
continued employment is dependent upon him/ her meeting the conditions set forth in this agreement and 
demonstrating effective performance of his/ her duties. Failure to do so will result in immediate 
termination of employment, subject to all due process rights to which the employee would be entitled but 
not those denied by the agreement.  

Check all boxes that apply and provide explanation. 

Employee will be suspended without pay from ________________ through _________________, 
20____.   (See section 9 below) 

Employee must undergo training and/or professional development. That training and/or professional 
development specifically includes:  

Employee must participate in an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to address job-related matters 
and / or consistence with business necessity. Employee agrees to allow Employer to receive 
confirmation that terms of the EAP assignment have been satisfied. The specific job-related matters 
and/ or consistence with business necessity include: 

Employee must participate in consultation with Human Resources office and/ or his/her supervisor to 
improve behavior or performance. Specifically, the employee will:  



20 

In addition: 
1. Employee will be expected to report to work following suspension, if applicable, at his/her

regularly scheduled time and shift after the assigned suspension and be able and prepared to work.
Return to work will occur on: _________________________________ (Date/ Time)

2. Employee will follow all verbal and written policies, procedures, directives, and instructions
communicated from his/her supervisor or the department head. If s/he disagrees for any reason
with these directives, s/he is required to follow the directives and later discuss his/her concerns with
the supervisor or department head, except when work safety is a concern. Where work safety is a
concern, s/he is required to report this issue to the supervisor, department head, and Human
Resources office immediately and before complying with the directive.

3. Employee understands that in an effort to assist him/her in making the necessary performance
improvements, his/her work will be closely monitored and supervised and s/he will accept such
supervision as a necessary part of his/her continued employment.

4. It is understood and agreed that the Employee’s status is “at-will” during the term of this
agreement and that the Employee can be terminated at any time and for any reason or for no
reason at all, and with no rights given to due process or appeal, including that which may be
contained in policy or in a collective bargaining agreement.

5. Employee understands that this Agreement is not a contract or guarantee of continued
employment for any specified period of time.

6. The Union, if applicable, and Employee waive all rights set forth in a collective bargaining
agreement and otherwise to challenge through the grievance procedure or other means any
termination or other discipline imposed under the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise
provided by law.

7. Employee understands and agrees that s/he has been afforded 48 hours to consider this Agreement
and that signing the Agreement was of his/her own free will and with the benefit of representation,
if so desired.

8. This Agreement shall be valid and binding for two years from the date of its signing, unless a
shorter period of time is expressly specified in this Agreement.

9. Employee’s disciplinary record will remain in effect during the entire duration of this Agreement.
Following the term of this Agreement, the disciplinary record will remain in effect in accordance
with the terms of the Employer’s personnel policies or the applicable collective bargaining
agreement.

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee’s Department Head Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Direct Supervisor, if other than Department Head Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Employee Representative(s), if applicable Date 

________________________________________________ ________________________ 
Human Resource Director Date

CC.: Employee’s Personnel File 



21 

NOTICE OF INJURY OR OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE 
(Incident Report) 

Pursuant to NRS 616C.015 

Name of Employer: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 Name of Employee  Social Security Number Telephone Number 

 Date of Accident            Time of Accident             Place where accident occurred (if applicable)
 (if applicable)    (if applicable) 

 What is the nature of the injury or occupational disease? List any body parts involved: 

Briefly describe accident or circumstances of occupational disease: 
(Note: if you are claiming an occupational disease, indicate the date on which employee first became aware connection between condition and employment) 

 Name of Witnesses: 

 Did the employee        ___Yes If yes, when (date & time)?       Has the employee  ___ Yes          If yes, when (date & time)? 
 leave work because   returned to work? ___ No 
 of the injury or         ___ No 
 occupational disease? 
 Was first aid      ____ Yes If yes, by whom?  Name and address of treating physician, if applicable or known 
 provided?          ____ No 

 Did the accident happen  
 in the normal course ______ Yes 
 of work? (if applicable) ______ No 

 Was anyone  ______ Yes Names of others involved 
 else involved?  ______ No 

MY EMPLOYER/INSURER MAY HAVE MADE ARRANGEMENTS TO DIRECT ME TO A HEALTH CARE PROVIDED FOR MEDICAL 
TREATMENT OF MY INDUSTRIAL INJURY OR OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE. I HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED OF THESE ARRANGEMENTS. 

__________________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
Supervisor’s Signature Date Signature of Injured or Disabled Employee Date 

TO FILE A CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION, SEE REVERSE SIDE, SECTION ENTITLED, CLAIM FOR 
COMPENSATION (FORM C-4). 

 For assistance with Workers’ Compensation Issues you may contact the State of Nevada Office for Consumer Health Assistance 
Toll Free: 1-888-333-1597   Web site:  http://dhhs.nv.gov/Programs/CHA/ E-mail: cha@govcha.nv.gov 

Employee should sign, date and retain a copy. C-1 (Rev 02/20) 
Original to Employer, Copy to Employee  

http://dhhs.nv.gov/Programs/CHA/
mailto:cha@govcha.nv.gov


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Presentation, public workshop, discussion, and consideration directing staff
regarding updates to the Storey County Strategic Plan for Fiscal Year 2025-2026.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to direct county staff to amend the
Storey County Strategic Plan mission statement, vision statement, and other elements as
discussed at today’s workshop and to bring a draft of these amendments to the board at a
future meeting for further review and consideration.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: This public workshop will provide opportunity to review the current
FY2024-2025 Storey County Strategic Plan and update and amend it as necessary.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       16



BOCC TALKING PAPER 
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE FOR 2025 

Page 1 of 2 

Vision Statement 

Storey County is a place where independence is valued, the rural Nevada 
lifestyle and rich history is treasured, and businesses, large and small, 

thrive. 

Mission Statement 

We strive to provide excellent, efficient, and predictable services; be 
accessible and transparent; preserve our past and embrace our future; 
and provide safe and welcoming places for our residents, businesses, 

and stakeholders. 

Perspectives and Goals 

(See the remaining strategic plan for Objectives, Strategies, and Tactics supporting 
the Perspectives and Goals below.) 

Perspective Goal 

1 Support the safety of 
our communities. 1.1 Keep communities safe from crime. 

1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the Storey 
County Fire Protection District.  

1.3 Provide quick response to calls for emergency 
services. 

1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and recover 
from emergencies. 

1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages. 



BOCC TALKING PAPER 
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE FOR 2025 

Page 2 of 2 

Perspective Goal 

2 Support the health 
and resiliency of our 
communities. 

2.1 Create a safe and appealing built environment. 

2.2 
Support the senior population through nutrition 
and other programming that creates holistic social 
and physical well-being. 

2.3 
Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the general 
population. 

2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water. 

2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal. 

2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public. 

3 Respect and promote 
the distinct character 
and heritage of our 
communities. 

3.1 Encourage public participation in setting the future 
direction of each unique community. 

3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the character 
and heritage of our communities. 

3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia city 
and Gold Hill areas. 

4 Attract, retain, and 
grow businesses that 
will support long-
term sustainability. 

4.1 
Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development. 

4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of the 
Virginia City Tourism Commission. 

5 Storey County 
governance is 
accessible and 
transparent. 

5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects of 
governance. 

5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to every 
community. 

6 Provide excellent, 
predictable, and 
efficient service to all 
our communities. 

6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public service 
needs. 

6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County resources. 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 1 of 9 

A. SHORT RECAP

Vision

What we want to accomplish as 
an organization.

Mission

How we will achieve the Vision

Perspectives

Very broad statements
describing results for core 
areas aligned with the 
mission.

Goals

General accomplishments
that align with the 
perspective.

Objectives

Accomplishments
aligned with goals.

Strategies

Applied actions to 
fulfull the 
objectives.

Tactics

Very specific tools 
and techniques that 
will be used in 
strategic actions.

1. 

2. 

3.



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 2 of 9 

B. AN EXAMPLE
1. Perspective

a. Support the health and resiliency of our communities.

2. Goal

a. Support senior populations through nutrition and other programing
that creates holistic social and physical well-being.

3. Objective

a. Provide facilities that adequately serve the needs of all communities.

4. Strategy

a. Replace and repair facilities to provide site-cooked meals, social
activities, recreation, and support.

5. Tactic

a. Replace the Lockwood Community Center.

C. OUR VISION & MISSION STATEMENT

Vision Statement 

Storey County is a place where independence is valued, where the 
rural Nevada lifestyle and rich history is treasured, and where 
businesses, large and small, thrive. 

Mission Statement 

We strive to provide excellent, efficient, and predictable services; 
to be accessible and transparent; to preserve our past and 
embrace our future; and to provide safe and welcoming place for 
our residents, businesses, and stakeholders. 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 3 of 9 

D. OUR PERSPECTIVES & GOALS
1. Perspective – Support the safety of our communities.

• 1.1  Keep communities safe from crime.

• 1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the S.C. Fire Protection Dist.

• 1.3 Provide quick response to calls for emergency services.

• 1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and recover from emergencies.

• 1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and drainages.

2. Perspective – Support the health and resiliency of our communities.

• 2.1 Create a safe and appealing built environment.

• 2.2 Support the senior population through nutrition and other programing that
creates holistic social and physical well-being.

• 2.3 Support the organization and programs that contribute to the health and
welfare of the general population.

• 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.

• 2.5 Provie for safe and adequate wastewater treatment and waste disposal.

• 2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and optimum use by the public.

3. Perspective – Respect and promote the distinct character and heritage of our
communities.

• 3.1 Encourage public participation in setting the future direction of each
unique community.

• 3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the character and heritage of our
communities.

• 3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia City and Gold Hill areas.

4. Perspective – Attract, retain, and grow businesses that will support long-term
sustainability.

• 4.1 Provide an environment that supports and promotes quality business
growth and development.

• 4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission.

5. Perspective – Storey County governance is accessible and transparent.

• 5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects of governance.

• 5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to every community.

6. Perspective – Provide excellent, predictable, and efficient service to all our
communities.

• 6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public service needs.
• 6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County resources.



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 4 of 9 

E. SWOT (STRENGTHS, WEAKNESSES, OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS) ANALYSIS
Goals and objectives are listed below and should be aligned with each respective SWOT (Strengths, 
Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats) analysis.  

1. Perspective – Support the safety of our communities.

• 1.1  Keep communities safe from crime.

• 1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the SCFPD.

• 1.3 Provide quick response to calls for emergency services.

• 1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and recover from emergencies.

• 1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and drainages.

PERSPECTIVE 1 AND GOALS 
SWOT 

Internal External 
Strengths  Weaknesses Strengths  Weaknesses 

Opportunities Threats Opportunities Threats 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 5 of 9 

2. Perspective – Support the health and resiliency of our communities.

• 2.1 Create a safe and appealing built environment.

• 2.2 Support the senior population through nutrition and other programing that
creates holistic social and physical well-being.

• 2.3 Support the organization and programs that contribute to the health and
welfare of the general population.

• 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.

• 2.5 Provie for safe and adequate wastewater treatment and waste disposal.

• 2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and optimum use by the public.

PERSPECTIVE 2 AND GOALS 
SWOT 

Internal External 
Strengths  Weaknesses Strengths  Weaknesses 

Opportunities Threats Opportunities Threats 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 6 of 9 

3. Perspective – Respect and promote the distinct character and heritage of our
communities.

• 3.1 Encourage public participation in setting the future direction of each
unique community.

• 3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the character and heritage of our
communities.

• 3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia City and Gold Hill areas.

PERSPECTIVE 3 AND GOALS 
SWOT 

Internal External 
Strengths  Weaknesses Strengths  Weaknesses 

Opportunities Threats Opportunities Threats 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 7 of 9 

4. Perspective – Attract, retain, and grow businesses that will support long-term
sustainability.

• 4.1 Provide an environment that supports and promotes quality business
growth and development.

• 4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission.

PERSPECTIVE 4 AND GOALS 
SWOT 

Internal External 
Strengths  Weaknesses Strengths  Weaknesses 

Opportunities Threats Opportunities Threats 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 8 of 9 

5. Perspective – Storey County governance is accessible and transparent.

• 5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects of governance.

• 5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to every community.

PERSPECTIVE 5 AND GOALS 
SWOT 

Internal External 
Strengths  Weaknesses Strengths  Weaknesses 

Opportunities Threats Opportunities Threats 



BOCC Strategic Plan 2024-25 Draft Talking Paper 

Page 9 of 9 

6. Perspective – Provide excellent, predictable, and efficient service to all our
communities.

• 6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public service needs.
• 6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County resources.

PERSPECTIVE 6 AND GOALS 
SWOT 

Internal External 
Strengths  Weaknesses Strengths  Weaknesses 

Opportunities Threats Opportunities Threats 



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

1
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.1 1.1 Keep communities safe from crime.
Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities. 

Include communications related to Sheriff’s 
services and tips for staying safe.  

Amended and operated FY24 PR outreach 
program. Plan changes for FY25.

Actively recruiting in-house public relations 
officer. The PR plan will be updated with the 
successful hire.

Finished or on-schedule. CM

2
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.1 1.1 Keep communities safe from crime.
Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities. 

Include communications related to Sheriff’s 
services and tips for staying safe.  

Improving coordination with Sheriff’s Office with 
shared PR outreach.

Done Finished or on-schedule. SO

3
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.1 1.1 Keep communities safe from crime.
Enhance law enforcement 
presence in each community. 

Improve facilities and equipment.
Facilitated and funded SO TRI-Center Substation 
project, phase 1.

Finished or on-schedule.

4
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.1 1.1 Keep communities safe from crime.
Enhance law enforcement 
presence in each community. 

Improve facilities and equipment.
Negotiated GSA with Tesla to fund 7 Sheriff’s 
patrol deputies and equipment.

Finished or on-schedule.

5
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.1 1.1 Keep communities safe from crime.
Enhance law enforcement 
presence in each community. 

Improve facilities and equipment.

The county explored options and federal 
funding to improve detention facilities. The jail 
facility will be further evaluated by an FY25 
facilities structural and future use analysis by an 
independent engineer.

Lumos & Associates retained to conduct this 
analysis. Propane lot/935 S State Route 341 
purchased by Storey County on 11/05/2024.

Finished or on-schedule. PW, IT, CM

6
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.2
1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the 
Storey County Fire Protection District. 

Update the Storey County 
Master Plan.

Develop goals and policies that enhance building 
and fire safety

The plan is under review and edits are being 
drafted.

Decmeber 31, 2024 target.
In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

7
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.2
1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the 
Storey County Fire Protection District. 

Enhance water systems for 
fire suppression.

Enhance Fire Water Cisterns for the Highlands 
(Phase 1 of 3).

Planned for FY25 phase 1.

An interlocal agreement is being drafted to cost-
allocate all functions provided to fire district. 
The agreement will be part of the FY26 budget 
process.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

CM, FD, CFO, DA

8
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.2
1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the 
Storey County Fire Protection District. 

Share services between 
county and district to 
maximize resources.

Update interlocal agreement between the 
county and the Fire District for shared services. 

Interlocal agreement for shared services in 
progress. The interlocal agreement for Station 
71 expansion project is complete.

An interlocal agreement is being drafted to cost-
allocate all functions provided to fire district. 
The agreement will be part of the FY26 budget 
process.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

CM, FD, CFO, DA

9
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.2
1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the 
Storey County Fire Protection District. 

Share services between 
county and district to 
maximize resources.

Update interlocal agreement between the 
county and the Fire District for shared services. 

The county team is managing the grant and 
project for the Fire Station 71 project. 

Design in FY25. Construction FY26.
In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

CM, FD, CFO, DA, PW, Grant

10
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.2
1.2 Support and coordinate efforts with the 
Storey County Fire Protection District. 

Share services between 
county and district to 
maximize resources.

Update interlocal agreement between the 
county and the Fire District for shared services. 

 An interlocal agreement addressing shared 
services is being prepared for board 
consideration.

An interlocal agreement is being drafted to cost-
allocate all functions provided to fire district. 
The agreement will be part of the FY26 budget 
process.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

CM, FD, CFO, DA

11
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.3
1.3 Provide quick response to calls for 
emergency services.

Maintain inter-agency 
coordination.

Cooperate and meet regularly to share 
resources and information.

Monthly e-board meetings occur coordinating 
Fire, Sheriff, EM communications, and IT 
technology support.

Finished or on-schedule. CM, FD, SO, IT, EM

12
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.3
1.3 Provide quick response to calls for 
emergency services.

Maintain inter-agency 
coordination.

Cooperate and meet regularly to share 
resources and information.

County IT resources were applied to administer 
MDT onboarding and maintenance.

Finished or on-schedule. IT, FD, SO

13
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Educate the public at community events and in 
field exercises about emergency preparedness.

Themed social media pushes and apps are being 
explored for future use.

This is budgeted for FY25. Finished or on-schedule. EM

14
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Educate the public at community events and in 
field exercises about emergency preparedness.

Change to Rave was done and will better 
communicate with stakeholders.

Done. Finished or on-schedule. EM, IT, SO, FD

15
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Educate the public at community events and in 
field exercises about emergency preparedness.

Town halls have expanded to include Sheriff, 
fire, and other officials.

Working on pre-planning town halls and 
distributing calendar.

Finished or on-schedule. CM, PR, EM, SO, FD

16
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Educate the public at community events and in 
field exercises about emergency preparedness.

Logo-wear, signage, vehicle decals, and other 
branding is budgeted for FY25.

Finished or on-schedule. EM

Current as of: 11/7/2024 1



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

17
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Educate the public at community events and in 
field exercises about emergency preparedness.

Emergency Management is implementing a 5-
year Integrated Preparedness Plan with annually 
themed trainings and exercises to bolster 
community emergency preparedness.

Finished or on-schedule. EM

18
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Establish consistent and uniform 
emergency/urgent messaging throughout the 
county.

The county seal, tagline, and colors are better 
integrated into website and social media. 

Changes ongoing with new PR Officer. Finished or on-schedule. CM, PR

19
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Establish consistent and uniform 
emergency/urgent messaging throughout the 
county.

Developing PIO and communications plan 
between SO, fire, EM, and other offices.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

EM

20
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.4
1.4 Have plans ready to prepare, respond, and 
recover from emergencies.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
County communities.

Inform the public where to obtain emergency 
response information during an event.  

Emergency management enhancements have 
been made to county website.

Ongoing Finished or on-schedule. EM, PR

21
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, 
and drainages.

Enhance public outreach 
about road conditions.

Utilize online resources to provide information 
to the public.

Snow and road closures are more consistently 
noticed on county social media.
Improvements still being made.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

PW, PR

22
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Enhance public outreach 
about road conditions.

Utilize online resources to provide information 
to the public.

A mobile app allowing direct public outreach has 
been evaluated and is budgeted for in FY25.

Reviewing benefits v. challenges of this.
Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

CM, PR

23
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Update countywide road rehabilitation plan for 
Fiscal Year 2025.

The county road plan is better aligned with 
actual road conditions and projected funds.

Evaluating actual vs. anticipated Tesla post-
abatement funds FY25 and FY26 for expansion 
of roads CIP.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

PW, CFO

24
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Monitor FY25 revenues and accelerate the road 
repair schedule if funds allow.

The capital improvement plan for FY25 is 
updated. 
The plan needs to be refined for the next three 
to five years. 
FY25 revenues will be confirmed before all 
expenditures.

Evaluating actual vs. anticipated Tesla post-
abatement funds.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

CM, CFO, PW

25
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Repair major collector roads identified in road 
rehabilitation plan as needing immediate 
attention.

Lousetown Road reconstruction began (SNC 
Construction).

Done Finished or on-schedule. PW

26
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Repair major collector roads identified in road 
rehabilitation plan as needing immediate 
attention.

Drainage at Peri Ranch Road at the LCC is 
corrected

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

PW

27
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Repair major collector roads identified in road 
rehabilitation plan as needing immediate 
attention.

Taylor Street Black & Howell washout is 
repaired.

Done Finished or on-schedule. EM, PW, Grant

28
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Repair major collector roads identified in road 
rehabilitation plan as needing immediate 
attention.

A new traffic signal is being installed at USA and 
Innovation.
County will only maintain light.

Done Finished or on-schedule. CM, PW, CFO 

29
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Repair and improve existing 
county roads.

Repair major collector roads identified in road 
rehabilitation plan as needing immediate 
attention.

A traffic signal at Electric Avenue and Milan 
Drive will be 85% paid by Tesla per negotiated 
contract.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

PW

30
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Improve drainage 
infrastructure serving county 
roads.

Implement the goals and policies of the Storey 
County Master Plan.

Lockwood Flood Mitigation Study is near 
complete. Phase 3 implementation is ready for 
FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

Plan

31
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Improve drainage 
infrastructure serving county 
roads.

Implement the goals and policies of the Storey 
County Master Plan.

Mark Twain/ Dayton Valley Area Drainage 
Master Plan planning continues.

Phase 1 culvert and drainage work has been 
ongoing. Some improvements are dependent on 
plan conformance as they impact Lyon County 
downstream.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

Plan

32
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Improve drainage 
infrastructure serving county 
roads.

Implement the goals and policies of the Storey 
County Master Plan.

Six Mile Canyon drainage culverts are planned 
and are budgeted for FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

PW, Plan

33
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Improve drainage 
infrastructure serving county 
roads.

Prepare drainage study for County roads and 
parcels at the TRI-Center.

Only TRI-Center roads meeting county standards 
were accepted through dedication.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

Plan

Current as of: 11/7/2024 2



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

34
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Enhance vehicle and 
pedestrian safety on county 
roads.

Slow down traffic and increase driver awareness 
on I and L Streets.

The county and VCTC are working together on 
solutions.

I Street traffic calming devices are in the FY25 
budget.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

35
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Enhance vehicle and 
pedestrian safety on county 
roads.

Design a proper vehicle rail crossing at 
Fairgrounds Road and F Street (Phase 1 of 2, 
design).

The RR crossing engineering at Fairground Road 
and F Street is budgeted for FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

36
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Enhance vehicle and 
pedestrian safety on county 
roads.

Manage increasing cross traffic at the Milan 
Drive and Electric Avenue intersection. 

Tesla will pay 85% of traffic signal installation at 
Electric Avenue and Milan Drive per negotiated 
contract.

GSA Amendment 1 In Progress.
In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

37
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Enhance vehicle and 
pedestrian safety on county 
roads.

Prevent semi-tractor-trailers from driving up Six 
Mile Canyon Road.

Six Mile Canyon Road semi-truck turnaround is 
engineered and budgeted for construction in 
FY25. This included cooperation by Storey 
County, Sheriff’s Office, SCFD, and Lyon County. 

Project is going to bid now.
In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

38
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Enhance vehicle and 
pedestrian safety on county 
roads.

Prevent semi-tractor trailers from driving on 
Peri Ranch Road at the LCC community.

Limited resources are available to guarantee law 
enforcement presence at Peri Ranch Road 
during every closure of I80. Resources were 
added.

Staffing increases have occurred at SO. Finished or on-schedule.

39
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Improve and expand road 
construction support facilities.

Facilitate a secure place to store Public Works 
equipment at project locations.

Fencing and security systems are budgeted for 
FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

40
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Improve and expand road 
construction support facilities.

Enhance reliability of vehicle fueling stations. New fuel tanks are budgeted in FY25. Finished or on-schedule.

41
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Update the Storey County 
Master Plan.

Review plan to ensure that it aligns with 
changes to roads and pedestrian ways since 
2016.

Master Plan update is occurring. 
BOCC adoption consideration before December 
31, 2024.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

42
1. Support the safety of our
communities.

1.5
1.5 Provide safe roadways, pedestrian ways, and 
drainages.

Establish and maintain private-
public partnerships.

Coordinate with Chamber of Commerce to 
implement “Main Streets” program in Virginia 
City to explore boardwalk resolutions.

The county, VCTC, S.C. Chamber of Commerce, 
and business community are exploring potential 
boardwalk maintenance programs under “Main 
Streets” program.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

43
2. Support the health and
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities

Provide resources for prospective real estate 
buyers on zoning, development codes, Storey 
County Master Plan, and building limitations.

DEVNET system users are updating and aligning 
data with other data sources. This is an ongoing 
project.

DEVNET uses are subject to the Assessor’s 
Office directives.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

44
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities

Provide resources for prospective real estate 
buyers on zoning, development codes, Storey 
County Master Plan, and building limitations.

County website documents were updated.
Website upgrades are ongoing too. The new PR 
Officer will improve useability and appeal.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

45
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities

Educate new residents about rural living and 
challenges unique to Storey County.

FY25 strategic plan facilitates printed and online 
education materials that will be made part of 
permit packets.

Neutral/Acknowledged.

46
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities

Educate new residents about rural living and 
challenges unique to Storey County.

FY25 strategic plan includes website providing 
resources about mine claims, clouded title, 
water rights and issues, historic district 
designation, local zoning and land uses, ZIP 
Codes, local wildlife and climate, and level of 
government services.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

IT

47
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Implement the Storey County 
Master Plan.

Implement and conform to the policies of the 
Storey County Master Plan for each community.

Permitting and development has remained 
aligned with the master plan.

Finished or on-schedule.

48
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Improve vehicle circulation 
and parking in Virginia City.

Conduct a Virginia City vehicle parking and 
circulation study. 

A comprehensive update to the Virginia City 
Parking Study is budgeted for in FY25. 
The parking plan update will be closely 
coordinated with the Sheriff’s Office, fire 
district, and VCTC.

Finished or on-schedule.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 3



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

49
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Support and maintain 
sustainable private-public 
partnerships.

Continue implementing the terms of the TRI-
Center Development Agreement. 

Road, drainage, and infrastructure dedications 
occur only when conforming to the TRI-Center 
development agreement. Ongoing plan review 
discussions occur between the county and 
TRIARC.

Finished or on-schedule.

50
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Support and maintain 
sustainable private-public 
partnerships.

Review and consider private-public partnership 
proposals.

Subject to requests. Subject to request. Neutral/Acknowledged.

51
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Support and maintain 
sustainable private-public 
partnerships.

Consider cost-effective government services 
agreements that offset infrastructure impacts of 
Nevada Revised Statute mandated tax 
abatements.

2024 plan completed and conformed to. 
Discussing 2025 legislative lobbying plan.

Finished or on-schedule.

52
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Support and maintain 
sustainable private-public 
partnerships.

Evaluate potential financial assistance to assist 
small businesses with building and façade 
repairs.

C-PACE local financing programs for private 
businesses and workforce housing are under 
evaluation to determine if they benefit or cause 
undue burden on the county. 

BOCC directive pending.
Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

53
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Support and maintain 
sustainable private-public 
partnerships.

Evaluate potential financial assistance to assist 
small businesses with building and façade 
repairs.

Chamber of Commerce to implement “Main 
Streets” program in Virginia City.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

54
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Clean up Storey County 
communities of solid waste, 
unregistered vehicles, noxious 
weeds, fire fuels, and 
potential hazards

Enforce county nuisance and building codes 
efficiently, accurately, and consistently.

Updates to county code budgeted for FY25. Finished or on-schedule.

55
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Clean up Storey County 
communities of solid waste, 
unregistered vehicles, noxious 
weeds, fire fuels, and 
potential hazards

Enforce county nuisance and building codes 
efficiently, accurately, and consistently.

A full-time Code Enforcement Officer is 
budgeted for FY25.
Recruitment efforts active now.

Finished or on-schedule.

56
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Clean up Storey County 
communities of solid waste, 
unregistered vehicles, noxious 
weeds, fire fuels, and 
potential hazards

Enforce county nuisance and building codes 
efficiently, accurately, and consistently.

Stakeholders report experiencing consistent and 
fair building code enforcement. 
Team applies alternative means and methods in 
permitting and plan review where appropriate. 
Everyone is treated equitably.

Finished or on-schedule.

57
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.1
2.1 Create a safe and appealing built 
environment

Clean up Storey County 
communities of solid waste, 
unregistered vehicles, noxious 
weeds, fire fuels, and 
potential hazards

Provide resources and assistance to help 
residents conform to nuisance and building 
codes.

New solid waste franchise agreement includes 
for in-need citizens:
--Free dump vouchers
--Extra dump vouchers as needed
--Free roll-off dumpsters
--Free removal of rubbish
--Senior discount
--Senior low-income discount
--Lockwood interlocal discount

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

58
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide cost-effective social 
and health services in each 
community.

Maintain interlocal agreement with Community 
Chest, Inc. 

Health and social service programs provided by 
Community Chest, Inc. are partially funded by 
the county and are applied with inter-local 
cooperation.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS, IT

59
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

Lockwood residents now enjoy locally prepared 
meals. The Washoe meal program was 
discontinued.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

Current as of: 11/7/2024 4



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

60
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

The Lockwood Community Center project has 
begun. VC/Mark Twain. 

Construction bids were received and are being 
evaluated now

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

61
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

The Mark Twain Community Center equipment 
bay expansion building will free up community 
center space. Start FY25.

Done and operational. Finished or on-schedule. HCS, IT

62
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

General Mark Twain Community Center 
improvements are budgeted for in FY25.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS, IT

63
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

VC Senior Center expansions are near complete. Finished or on-schedule. HCS

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

Provide/serve meals at the Storey County Jail . Neutral/Acknowledged. HCS

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

Obtain necessary items/funding for items in 
Goal 2.2 by completing  facilities study of the 
Mark Twain Community Center.

Neutral/Acknowledged. HCS

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.2
2.2 Support the local population through 
nutrition and other programming that creates 
holistic social and physical well-being.

Provide facilities that 
adequately serve the needs of 
all communities.

Replace and repair facilities to provide/serve site-
cooked & delivered meals, social activities, 
recreation, and other support to the community 
in each geographic area of the county.

Relocate VC Senior Center to current Hugh 
Gallagher Elementary School site upon 
completion of new elementary school site. 

Neutral/Acknowledged. HCS

64
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Provide indigent/protected 
persons services in 
conformance with the Nevada 
Revised Statutes.

Evaluate and update indigent/protected person 
policies and programs as needed.  

Indigent Services were moved to Health and 
Community Services (HCS). Seek Guardianship 
appointment opportunity/eligibility by HCS.

NRS 159 Finished or on-schedule. HCS

65
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Provide indigent/protected 
persons services in 
conformance with the Nevada 
Revised Statutes.

Maintain interlocal agreements with Nevada 
State agencies providing youth, health, and 
other indigent/protected person services 
outside of the county’s capacity.

Indigent services are funded annually. Seek 
Guardianship abilty by HCS.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

66
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Expand broadband internet 
infrastructure and services 
countywide.

Implement MOU and agreement with CC 
Communications for broadband access to all 
communities in Storey County.

An MOU with CC Communications will facilitate 
broadband infrastructure expansion for 
residents and the county beginning in FY25.

Infrastructure development will begin FY25. Finished or on-schedule. HCS, IT

67
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Provide cost-effective social 
and health services to each 
community.

Provide health and social services through 
interlocal agreements with qualified agencies.

Maintain healthy coalitions. Health and social 
services are provided through an interlocal 
agreement with the Community Chest & quad 
counties.

Interlocal agreement for educational access? Finished or on-schedule. HCS

68
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Provide cost-effective social 
and health services to each 
community.

Provide health and social services through 
interlocal agreements with qualified agencies.

Health services through an interlocal agreement 
with the Quad-Counties Health Coalition.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

Current as of: 11/7/2024 5



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

69
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Facilitate opportunities for 
affordable housing.  

Explore methods that the county may apply 
toward facilitating infrastructure supporting 
housing development and rehabilitation.

Research has occurred with area jurisdictions, 
housing authorities, UNR, and others.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

70
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Facilitate opportunities for 
affordable housing.  

Explore methods that the county may apply 
toward facilitating infrastructure supporting 
housing development and rehabilitation.

The RCG Economics Housing Needs Assessment 
is underway. The plan will help county 
determine appropriate housing options.

Housing plan completion estimated July or 
August 2024.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Facilitate opportunities for 
affordable housing.  

Explore methods that the county may apply 
toward facilitating infrastructure supporting 
housing development and rehabilitation.

Build, maintain and annually update a task force. Neutral/Acknowledged. HCS

71
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Facilitate opportunities for 
affordable housing.  

Update the Storey County Master Plan to 
consider additional potential housing 
opportunities.

The RCG Housing Needs Assessment will be 
applied to the county master plan update.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

72
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Facilitate qualified workforce 
for businesses in the county.

Connect businesses with regional workforce 
development resources.

Business Development Officer and resources 
connect businesses to local resources for 
employees, professional development, and 
related programs. Strong relationship with TRI, 
VC/GH, and countywide companies.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

73
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.3
2.3 Support organizations and programs that 
contribute to the health and welfare of the 
general population.

Facilitate qualified workforce 
for businesses in the county.

Connect businesses with regional workforce 
development resources.

County is communicating workforce needs with 
chambers of commerce from Storey and 
Reno/Sparks.

Finished or on-schedule. HCS

74
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Improve water fund 
sustainability without 
impacting existing rate payers.

Increase water connection fees for new 
construction.

Evaluating new residential connection fee 
update ordinance. Subject to BOC direction. 

On hold per BOCC directive.
Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

75
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Improve water fund 
sustainability without 
impacting existing rate payers.

Increase water connection fees for new 
construction.

Completed commercial connection fee update 
ordinance.

Done. Finished or on-schedule.

76
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Improve water fund 
sustainability without 
impacting existing rate payers.

Fund improvements through grants and federal 
appropriations.

Federal appropriations secured for the lead 
siphon project. 

B Street water line completed. Finished or on-schedule.

77
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Attract and retain qualified 
water distribution and 
treatment employees

Explore incentive programs to attract and retain 
certified and qualified water personnel.

Applied classification and compensation 
incentives accordance with policy and employee 
agreements.

Competing with Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority is a challenge for area jurisdictions. 
Water/Sewer fund is insufficient to support 
substantial wage increases.

Finished or on-schedule.

78
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Improve water system 
infrastructure.

Design Silver City water transmission line 
replacement, phase 1 of 2.

Utilized design engineering to secure federal 
appropriations.

Finished or on-schedule.

79
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Improve water system 
infrastructure.

Design and environmental preliminary 
architectural reporting for Lead siphon 
replacement project, phase 1 of 5.

Utilized design engineering to secure federal 
appropriations.

Finished or on-schedule.

80
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Maintain safe and reliable 
water systems.

Repair and upgrade water storage and 
treatment systems.

Contract being finished to seal water tanks over 
several years.
Budgeted replacement of water filter media in 
water treatment system. 

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

81
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Maintain safe and reliable 
water systems.

Maintain appropriate water and system security. Security cameras and security installed. 
Cameras have been installed at the treatment 
plant.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

82
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.4 2.4 Provide safe and adequate drinking water.
Ensure sufficient and 
affordable raw water to the 
Storey County Water System.

Maintain engagement with the State of Nevada.
Retained qualified water expert for anticipated 
FY25 Marlette Water Agreement with the State 
of Nevada.

Water consultant retired. Exploring several 
alternative consultants now. Secondary 
resources are secured.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 6



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

83
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.5
2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal.

Improve wastewater fund 
sustainability without 
impacting existing rate payers.

Increase wastewater connection fees for new 
construction.

Evaluate new residential connection fee update 
ordinance. Subject to board direction.

On hold per BOCC.
Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

84
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.5
2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal.

Improve wastewater fund 
sustainability without 
impacting existing rate payers.

Increase wastewater connection fees for new 
construction.

Completed commercial connection fee update 
ordinance.

Done Finished or on-schedule.

85
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.5
2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal.

Improve wastewater fund 
sustainability without 
impacting existing rate payers.

Fund improvements through grants and federal 
appropriations.

Federal appropriations pending for Gold Hill 
sewer lines.

Finished or on-schedule.

86
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.5
2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal.

Attract and retain qualified 
wastewater distribution and 
treatment employees

Explore incentive programs to attract and retain 
certified and qualified wastewater personnel.

Completed competitive compensation plan 
updates: salaries and health insurance.

Competing with Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority is a challenge for area jurisdictions. 
Water/Sewer fund is insufficient to support 
substantial wage increases.

Finished or on-schedule.

87
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.5
2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal.

Maintain safe and reliable 
wastewater systems.

Repair and upgrade wastewater collection and 
treatment systems.

Budgeted FY25 phase 1 study. Finished or on-schedule.

88
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.5
2.5 Provide for safe and adequate wastewater 
treatment and waste disposal.

Improve operations and 
efficiency of the wastewater 
treatment plant.

Add generator to Gold Hill wastewater 
treatment plant.

Applied classification and compensation 
incentives accordance with policy and employee 
agreements.

Finished or on-schedule.

89
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Expand parks and recreation 
facilities in each community in 
the county.

Seek community input, design, and implement 
parks and recreation equipment improvements 
and expansions in the county.

Engage public to discuss potential Mark Twain 
Park expansions and integration with 
Community Center upgrades.

Finished or on-schedule.

90
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Expand parks and recreation 
facilities in each community in 
the county.

Seek community input, design, and implement 
parks and recreation equipment improvements 
and expansions in the county.

Replaced playground equipment at Mark Twain 
Park.

Finished or on-schedule.

91
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Expand parks and recreation 
facilities in each community in 
the county.

Seek community input, design, and implement 
parks and recreation equipment improvements 
and expansions in the county.

Budgeted FY25 dog park land assessment. Finished or on-schedule.

92
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Provide safe, secure, and 
functional park facilities in 
each community in the 
county.

Design and implement upgrades and repairs to 
existing park facilities.

Budgeted swing set at Highlands Pinion Park. Finished or on-schedule.

93
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Provide safe, secure, and 
functional park facilities in 
each community in the 
county.

Design and implement upgrades and repairs to 
existing park facilities.

Budgeted 1964 Storey County Swimming Pool, 
phase 1 of 2 design improvement FY25.

This may be a $10 million cost and needs to be 
prioritized against other critical infrastructure. 
Grants opportunities are in review.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

94
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Manage Off Highway Vehicle 
(OHV) use in lands 
surrounding communities.

Divert OHV uses away from private properties, 
homeowners’ association areas, and other 
unpermitted areas.

Increasing need to work with residents to 
identify viable off highway vehicle (OHV) areas 
for future designation. Planned FY25.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

95
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Manage Off Highway Vehicle 
(OHV) use in lands 
surrounding communities.

Divert OHV uses away from private properties, 
homeowners’ association areas, and other 
unpermitted areas.

Increased need to engage in OHV forum/club 
outreach to properly align OHV maps to public 
OHV trails and away from private communities. 
Planned FY25.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Manage Off Highway Vehicle 
(OHV) use in lands 
surrounding communities.

Divert OHV uses away from private properties, 
homeowners’ association areas, and other 
unpermitted areas.

Investigate opportunities to create an OHV 
Staging area for vehicles/trailers off main roads.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

96
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Manage Off Highway Vehicle 
(OHV) use in lands 
surrounding communities.

Divert OHV uses away from private properties, 
homeowners’ association areas, and other 
unpermitted areas.

Supported Sheriff’s OHV program grants. Finished or on-schedule.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 7



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

97
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.6
2.6 Operate recreational facilities for safe and 
optimum use by the public.

Manage Off Highway Vehicle 
(OHV) use in lands 
surrounding communities.

Divert OHV uses away from private properties, 
homeowners’ association areas, and other 
unpermitted areas.

Increased need to demonstrate private 
properties and BLM land to Google Maps, 
Apples Maps, and other online mapping 
software providers. Planned FY25.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Recruitment, hiring, and 
retention of Veterans and 
other military connected 
families.

Storey County partnership with DoD Skillbridge 
program to provide civilian work experience 
during the last 180 days of their military service.

Investigate opportunity with DoD Skillbridge to 
become a DoD Skillbridge partner.

https://skillbridge.osd.mil/ Neutral/Acknowledged. CM/HR

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Recruitment, hiring, and 
retention of Veterans and 
other military connected 
families.

Storey County support of Guard/Reserve.
Storey County completion of the ESGR State of 
Support form. 

https://www.esgr.mil/Employers/Statement-of-
Support 

Neutral/Acknowledged. CM/HR

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities regarding 
veteran and survivor benefits 
& resources.

Increase the number of Veteran Advocates (not 
VSOs) within Storey County.

Encourage county employees , and businesses 
within Storey County to complete the Nevada 
Department of Veterans Services Veteran 
Advocate Program every 3 years to learn about 
county, state, and federal benefits.

https://veterans.nv.gov/community/veterans-
advocacy/ Neutral/Acknowledged. CM/HR/HCS/CCI

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities regarding 
veteran and survivor benefits 
& resources.

Accredited Veteran Service Officer availability 
(not advocates) 

Partner with Veteran Service Organizations in 
Northern Nevada to have a VSO in attendance 
to assist with claims at local events, and or 
scheduled in the slammer, or other similar 
location.

https://www.va.gov/ogc/apps/accreditation/inde
x.asp 

Neutral/Acknowledged. HCS/CCI

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities regarding 
veteran and survivor benefits 
& resources.

Current and updated Veteran Resource page on 
Storey County website.

Ensure webpage is updated annually at a 
minimum, or as new information/updates are 
received.

https://www.storeycounty.org/538/Veteran-
Services 

Neutral/Acknowledged. PR

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Recognition of Veterans, 
prior/current service military 
families, and caregivers.

Recognize and learn about  the contributions 
veterans have made to the prosperity of Nevada 
and the United States, while building 
relationships with Veteran Organizations, 
elected officials, Veterans, and their families. 

Encourage Storey County employees, 
particularly veterans, to attend "Veterans Day at 
the Legislature" each 3rd Wednesday of March 
during each regular session of the Legislature

NRS 236.047 Neutral/Acknowledged. HR

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Annual Recognition of 
Operation Green Light.

Presentation each October at the BOCC for 
Resolution approval each November

Place green light in windows of county offices 
and businesses each November

https://www.naco.org/program/operation-green-
light-veterans 

Neutral/Acknowledged. CM/BOCC

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities regarding 
veteran and survivor benefits 
& resources.

Advocate on behalf of veterans and eligible 
family members to receive the benefits in which 
they are rightfully earned.

Join NACVSO Auxiliary to provide support to 
NACVSO (National Association of County 
Veterans Service Officers)

https://www.nacvso.org/membership-
information

Neutral/Acknowledged. CM/HR

New
2. Support the health and 
resiliency of our communities.

2.7

Support the health and resiliency of our 
Veterans, Prior & Current Service Military 
(Active Duty, Guard, & Reserve) and their 
families:

Recognition of Veterans, 
prior/current service military 
families, and caregivers.

Ensure miliary from all branches, past and 
present, men & women,  families, survivors, and 
caregivers are recognized for their 

Social media presence.
https://www.uap.org/post/important-military-
dates-holidays/

Neutral/Acknowledged. PR

98
3. Respect and promote the
distinct character and heritage
of our communities.

3.1
3.1 Encourage public participation in setting the 
future direction of each unique community.

Facilitate public awareness 
and involvement in 
community affairs. 

Utilize online and other resources to provide 
information to the public

Explored several mobile apps. Budgeted for 
potential application FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

CM, PR

99
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.1
3.1 Encourage public participation in setting the 
future direction of each unique community.

Facilitate public awareness 
and involvement in 
community affairs. 

Utilize online and other resources to provide 
information to the public

Electronic reader board for Mark Twain 
Community Center budgeted FY25.

PM is working on this project. Finished or on-schedule. IT

Current as of: 11/7/2024 8

https://skillbridge.osd.mil/
https://www.esgr.mil/Employers/Statement-of-Support
https://www.esgr.mil/Employers/Statement-of-Support
https://veterans.nv.gov/community/veterans-advocacy/
https://veterans.nv.gov/community/veterans-advocacy/
https://www.va.gov/ogc/apps/accreditation/index.asp
https://www.va.gov/ogc/apps/accreditation/index.asp
https://www.storeycounty.org/538/Veteran-Services
https://www.storeycounty.org/538/Veteran-Services
https://www.naco.org/program/operation-green-light-veterans
https://www.naco.org/program/operation-green-light-veterans
https://www.nacvso.org/membership-information
https://www.nacvso.org/membership-information


Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

100
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.1
3.1 Encourage public participation in setting the 
future direction of each unique community.

Facilitate public awareness 
and involvement in 
community affairs. 

Facilitate public participation in the Storey 
County Master Plan update.

Began Master Plan update workshops in each 
community and by Zoom. Complete by October 
2024.

Finished or on-schedule.

101
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Protect Lagomarsino 
Petroglyphs. 

Coordinate with adjacent landowners and 
applicable agencies to minimize roads and other 
development potentially impacting petroglyphs.

Educating area landowners and developers 
about the existence and value of the 
Petroglyphs.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

102
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Protect Lagomarsino 
Petroglyphs. 

Coordinate with adjacent landowners and 
applicable agencies to minimize roads and other 
development potentially impacting petroglyphs.

Preparing conversations for FY25 encouraging 
alternatives that minimize impacts to the 
Petroglyphs.

Possible bullet proof enclosure? FY26
In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

IT

103
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Protect Lagomarsino 
Petroglyphs. 

Coordinate with adjacent landowners and 
applicable agencies to minimize roads and other 
development potentially impacting petroglyphs.

As a Cooperating Agency with the BLM on the 
Green-link project, encouraging major power 
transmission line alignment away from the 
Petroglyphs.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

104
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Protect Lagomarsino 
Petroglyphs. 

Provide security and public enjoyment at the 
Petroglyphs.

Planning to explore opportunities to facilitate 
24/7 ranger station or onsite security in FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

105
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Protect Lagomarsino 
Petroglyphs. 

Provide security and public enjoyment at the 
Petroglyphs.

Need to look at all options for this area, 
including possible regional assistance. This is an 
ongoing and growing area of work.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

106
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Added simple xeriscaping (low/no water) to the 
Sheriff’s Lockwood Substation.

Finished or on-schedule.

107
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Continuing to work with artisan to complete 
north wrought iron fence of Courthouse.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

108
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Coordinating with Highlands to paint and 
refresh interior of dedicated community center 
building.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

109
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Repaired outdoor lighting at Highlands 
Community Center

Need to make “dark skies” adjustments. 
Happening now.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

110
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Repaired outdoor lighting at Mark Twain 
Community Center.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

111
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Maintain Mark Twain Veterans’ Memorial. Finished or on-schedule.

112
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Install flagpole at the Justice Court. Budgeted 
for early FY25.

Finished or on-schedule.

113
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Maintaining orderly parking lots and equipment 
maintenance yards.

Finished or on-schedule.

114
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Reflect community pride and 
identity in public facilities.

Maintaining clean and well-managed building 
exteriors that complement the surrounding 
community. 

Maintaining or installing “dark skies” conforming 
light fixtures on all county facilities.

Finished or on-schedule.

115
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Develop and maintain roads 
and infrastructure that is 
compatible with the built 
environment in each 
community.

Repair road and pedestrian infrastructure.

Adjustments being made to complete road 
repair projects in accordance with annual Roads 
Capital Improvement Plan and the year budget. 
Changes to plan and review will be implemented 
in FY25.

Monitoring FY25 reality of Tesla post-abatement 
revenues before expanding this.

Finished or on-schedule.

116
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Develop and maintain roads 
and infrastructure that is 
compatible with the built 
environment in each 
community.

Repair road and pedestrian infrastructure.
Replaced broken streetlamps on B and C Streets 
in Virginia City and LED bulbs. 

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 9



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

117
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Develop and maintain roads 
and infrastructure that is 
compatible with the built 
environment in each 
community.

Repair road and pedestrian infrastructure.
The county has conformed to the transportation 
infrastructure goals and policies of the Storey 
County Master Plan in each community.

Finished or on-schedule.

118
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Develop and maintain roads 
and infrastructure that is 
compatible with the built 
environment in each 
community.

Repair road and pedestrian infrastructure.

Boardwalk maintenance and repairs are annual 
challenges. The county continues to enforce 
county codes regarding boardwalk maintenance. 
The county has also approached the Chamber of 
Commerce about implementing the Main 
Streets America program to assist businesses 
with these repairs.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

119
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Develop and maintain roads 
and infrastructure that is 
compatible with the built 
environment in each 
community.

Repair road and pedestrian infrastructure.

The Virginia City Tourism Commission has made 
improvements to public transportation support 
systems. The county provides services to the 
VCTC by interlocal agreement and has offered to 
assist as needed. 

Finished or on-schedule.

120
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Provide a community center 
in the Highlands, Lockwood, 
Mark Twain, and Virginia City.

Modify existing facilities and construct new 
facilities to provide community center services.

In cooperation with the fire district, the county 
fulfilled a dedicated community center in the 
Highlands.

Done. Finished or on-schedule. IT

121
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Provide a community center 
in the Highlands, Lockwood, 
Mark Twain, and Virginia City.

Modify existing facilities and construct new 
facilities to provide community center services.

Completed Lockwood Community Center phase 
1 design in cooperation with Community Chest, 
school district, and local stakeholders.

Done. Finished or on-schedule.

122
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Provide a community center 
in the Highlands, Lockwood, 
Mark Twain, and Virginia City.

Modify existing facilities and construct new 
facilities to provide community center services.

Coordinated multi-year agreement and 
infrastructure development plan with Fire 
District to vacate MT Community Center for full 
use as a community center.

Finished or on-schedule.

123
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.2
3.2 Support infrastructure that enhances the 
character and heritage of our communities.

Provide a community center 
in the Highlands, Lockwood, 
Mark Twain, and Virginia City.

Modify existing facilities and construct new 
facilities to provide community center services.

Exploring potential community center facility 
expansion at Hugh Gallagher Elementary School 
if vacated by the school district.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

124
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.3
3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia 
city and Gold Hill areas.

Improve and maintain county-
owned historic structures with 
assistance of qualified non-
profit organizations.

Designate and assist qualified non-profit 
organizations to maintain historic county-owned 
structures.

Budgeted FY25 assistance to non-profit with 
grant efforts to install an elevator at Saint 
Mary’s Art Center, phase 1 of 2 design.

Pending SHPO Finished or on-schedule.

125
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.3
3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia 
city and Gold Hill areas.

Improve and maintain county-
owned historic structures with 
assistance of qualified non-
profit organizations.

Designate and assist qualified non-profit 
organizations to maintain historic county-owned 
structures.

Budgeted FY25 assistance to non-profit with 
seismic retrofit of Saint Mary's Art Center, phase 
1 of 2 design.

Finished or on-schedule.

126
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.3
3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia 
city and Gold Hill areas.

Improve and maintain county-
owned historic structures with 
assistance of qualified non-
profit organizations.

Designate and assist qualified non-profit 
organizations to maintain historic county-owned 
structures.

Added resources to County Manager’s Office 
enabling the county to build a non-profit 
organization program for Piper’s Opera House. 
This is per a five-year plan that was delayed by 
Covid and other circumstances.

RFQ public bid is out now. (Discuss MOU for 
large event support if this is a necessity).

Finished or on-schedule. IT

127
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.3
3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia 
city and Gold Hill areas.

Improve and maintain county-
owned historic structures with 
assistance of qualified non-
profit organizations.

Designate and assist qualified non-profit 
organizations to maintain historic county-owned 
structures.

County will need to conform to SHPO Piper’s 
Opera House structures repairs and 
maintenance program. Establishing non-profit 
management systems will resolve these 
matters.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 10



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

128
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.3
3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia 
city and Gold Hill areas.

Make necessary upgrades to 
the Storey County Courthouse 
to ensure its future as a public 
service facility.

Seek fiscal resources to improve structural 
integrity of the Courthouse.

The county continues to seek funding for 
seismic retrofits to the Courthouse in 
accordance with historic structures report.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

129
3. Respect and promote the 
distinct character and heritage 
of our communities.

3.3
3.3 Support historic preservation in the Virginia 
city and Gold Hill areas.

Make necessary upgrades to 
the Storey County Courthouse 
to ensure its future as a public 
service facility.

Seek fiscal resources to improve structural 
integrity of the Courthouse.

Electronic door locks and security upgrades 
done.

Done.
Possible metal door resmbling a histrical door? 
Will original doors need to be preserved for 
historiacl purposes?

Finished or on-schedule. IT

130
4. Attract, retain, and grow
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide high-speed 
broadband internet services 
to all residents and businesses 
in Storey County.

Utilize the expertise and resources of a qualified 
broadband service provider to develop 
infrastructure and provide affordable internet 
services.

Approved CC Communications broadband MOU. 
Work begins this summer. 

Finished or on-schedule. IT

131
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Reduce bureaucracy and foster a business-
friendly and customer-oriented government.

A facilities analysis and strategic plan is 
budgeted in FY25.

Finished or on-schedule.

132
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Reduce bureaucracy and foster a business-
friendly and customer-oriented government.

A county code review for inconsistencies and 
inefficiencies is budgeted in FY25. Code updates 
are funded too.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

133
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Provide current, fair, and efficient business 
regulations.

The county maintains streamlined, responsive, 
and efficient government. 

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

134
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Provide current, fair, and efficient business 
regulations.

An interlocal agreement between the county 
and VCTC is complete. 
The county will in FY25 seek professional 
services to review, update, and align Storey 
County Codes with Virginia City Tourism 
Commission Codes.

Finished or on-schedule.

135
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Respond quickly and accurately to customer 
questions and demands.

Adding a Business Development Officer has 
ensured continued fast and thorough 
responses.

Finished or on-schedule.

136
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Respond quickly and accurately to customer 
questions and demands.

The county utilizes social media and other 
online outreach for business development, and 
it recognizes that advancements can be made in 
this area. The county is also exploring an app to 
communicate directly to residents and 
businesses.

PR Officer will be tasked with further 
improvements.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 11



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

137
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Maintain Storey County’s 
competitive business 
environment in Nevada and 
provide distinguished services 
to business stakeholders in 
Storey County.

Respond quickly and accurately to customer 
questions and demands.

Phone tree automation is kept to a minimum. Finished or on-schedule.

138
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide needed assistance for 
business growth and 
development.

Study areas of needed and address known 
deficiencies.

RCG Economics is now working on the county’s 
Housing Needs Assessment.

Done July or August. Finished or on-schedule.

139
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide needed assistance for 
business growth and 
development.

Study areas of needed and address known 
deficiencies.

The county continues to seek and provide 
funding and programs that help small 
businesses with workforce, housing, and 
business needs.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

140
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide safe, clean, and 
professional facilities for 
businesses and prospective 
business clients.

Improve facilities to enhance business attraction 
and development

TRI-Center public restroom improvements 
budgeted in FY25.  

Finished or on-schedule.

141
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide safe, clean, and 
professional facilities for 
businesses and prospective 
business clients.

Improve facilities to enhance business attraction 
and development

The county van is in prison getting painted. The 
van will soon appear professional and will sport 
graphics promoting Storey County.

Finished or on-schedule.

142
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide and coordinate 
resources to small businesses 
and entrepreneurs in Storey 
County.

Develop and coordinate programs that support 
small businesses and entrepreneurship in Storey 
County.

Coordination with the S.C. Chamber of 
Commerce to promote small business assistance 
has begun. This is an emerging area.

Work to be done or uncertain 
elements.

143
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide and coordinate 
resources to small businesses 
and entrepreneurs in Storey 
County.

Develop and coordinate programs that support 
small businesses and entrepreneurship in Storey 
County.

The county is continuing to expand potential 
assistance for workforce development and 
retention, childcare options, fringe benefits, and 
other support for small businesses. This is an 
emerging area.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

144
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.1
4.1 Provide an environment that supports and 
promotes quality business growth and 
development.

Provide and coordinate 
resources to small businesses 
and entrepreneurs in Storey 
County.

Develop and coordinate programs that support 
small businesses and entrepreneurship in Storey 
County.

The county coordinates with area resources to 
minimize duplication of services.

Finished or on-schedule.

145
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.2
4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of 
the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Plan and facilitate 
infrastructure needed to 
implement successful tourism 
programs and facilities.

Federal funding was secured for the Fairgrounds 
water and electrical upgrade, phase 2 of 2.

Construction summer 2024. Finished or on-schedule.

146
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.2
4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of 
the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Plan and facilitate 
infrastructure needed to 
implement successful tourism 
programs and facilities.

The county ensured compatibility of Taylor 
Street reconstruction with VCTC planned pocket 
park.

Finished or on-schedule.

147
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.2
4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of 
the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Plan and facilitate 
infrastructure needed to 
implement successful tourism 
programs and facilities.

The Virginia City vehicle parking and circulation 
study is budgeted for FY25. 

Finished or on-schedule.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 12



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

148
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.2
4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of 
the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Plan and facilitate 
infrastructure needed to 
implement successful tourism 
programs and facilities.

Community and emergency office members 
expressed desire to explore potential one-way 
traffic and increased parking on parts of B, D, 
and E Streets. This project will occur in FY25 in 
concert with the Virginia City parking study.  

Egress plans/presence/EM preparedness added 
to local plan.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

EM

149
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.2
4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of 
the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Update the Storey County 
Master Plan 

Include key stakeholders in discussions and 
decisions of the Storey County Master Plan 
update.

VCTC and other stakeholders will be involved 
with the master plan update.

Finished or on-schedule.

150
4. Attract, retain, and grow 
businesses that will support
long-term sustainability.

4.2
4.2 Support the tourism development efforts of 
the Virginia City Tourism Commission.

Share services to maximize 
resources.

Maintain interlocal agreement between the 
County and the Virginia City Tourism 
Commission to share and minimize duplicated 
services.

The VCTC-Storey County interlocal agreement 
was completed.

Finished or on-schedule.

151
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize technology and online resources to reach 
and involve stakeholders in government 
meetings and decisions.

The county desires to upload board meeting 
audio/video recordings to website in FY25.

OnBase program upgrades are in process FY25.
In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

152
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize technology and online resources to reach 
and involve stakeholders in government 
meetings and decisions.

FY25 budgets include public outreach apps and 
programs.

SCSO app is availble. Finished or on-schedule. IT

153
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize technology and online resources to reach 
and involve stakeholders in government 
meetings and decisions.

The county continues to increase public records 
on its website in FY25.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

154
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize technology and online resources to reach 
and involve stakeholders in government 
meetings and decisions.

The county returned to Civic Plus website 
platform.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

155
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize technology and online resources to reach 
and involve stakeholders in government 
meetings and decisions.

County website content was updated by IT and 
departments.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

156
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize technology and online resources to reach 
and involve stakeholders in government 
meetings and decisions.

Website core training completed. Finished or on-schedule. IT

157
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize traditional means to reach and involve 
stakeholders, including those who do not use 
the internet, in government meetings and 
decisions.

The county plans to increase town hall, 
community interest, and other items on the 
website in addition to socials for FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

IT

Current as of: 11/7/2024 13



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

158
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize traditional means to reach and involve 
stakeholders, including those who do not use 
the internet, in government meetings and 
decisions.

The planning commission is increasing meetings 
in each community.

Finished or on-schedule.

159
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.1
5.1 Encourage public participation in all aspects 
of governance.

Effectively inform and provide 
opportunities and encourage 
resident, business, and 
stakeholder engagement with 
Storey County government.

Utilize traditional means to reach and involve 
stakeholders, including those who do not use 
the internet, in government meetings and 
decisions.

The county plans to increase telephone, mail, 
fliers, and other non-electronic means of 
communication where feasible in FY25.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

160
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize technology and online resources to 
enhance awareness and provide information to 
stakeholders.

The county created a brand for Storey County: 
“Bold Ideas that Build Nevada”.

Finished or on-schedule.

161
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize technology and online resources to 
enhance awareness and provide information to 
stakeholders.

The county determined that its existing seal is 
well known and respected. The seal is the 
county’s branding logo.

Finished or on-schedule.

162
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize technology and online resources to 
enhance awareness and provide information to 
stakeholders.

The county will explore in FY25 expansion of 
social media and possible app to communicate 
directly to businesses and residents.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

163
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize traditional means to reach and involve 
stakeholders, including those who do not use 
the internet, in government meetings and 
decisions.

The county will expand use of non-electronic 
means of communicating with citizens (fliers, 
mail, etc.).

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

164
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize traditional means to reach and involve 
stakeholders, including those who do not use 
the internet, in government meetings and 
decisions.

Community town halls occurred frequently in 
FY24, with focus on major projects.

Finished or on-schedule.

165
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize existing public records management 
programs.

Training new elected officials and staff on public 
records systems is ongoing and budgeted for 
FY25.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

166
5. Storey County governance is
accessible and transparent.

5.2
5.2 Provide accurate and timely information to 
every community.

Provide accurate and 
accessible information and 
public records.

Utilize existing public records management 
programs.

Public records request consistently meet NRS 
requirements.

Finished or on-schedule.

167
6. Provide excellent,
predictable, and efficient
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Establish standard service 
levels for various county 
services. 

Evaluate types and methods of services in other 
counties.

Conduct a comparable study of area counties 
where Storey County services need 
improvement. 

Project initiated July 8. Finished or on-schedule.

168
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Improve awareness and 
access to information in all 
county communities.

Develop improved communication strategies 
that provide advanced information on services 
service levels.  

Neutral/Acknowledged.

169
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Maintain efficient buildings 
and facilities use and 
expansions. 

The county budgeted for a facilities analysis and 
strategic plan for FY25.

Finished or on-schedule. IT

170
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Seek and secure grants and 
funding assistance that 
enhance county services.

Seek grants and financial assistance that benefit 
the County without undue burden.

The county is evaluating the cost versus benefit 
of grants before applying for them.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

171
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Maintain effective 
government affairs.

Maximize team member knowledge and skills 
with organized assignments.

The county maintains a lobbyist work plan that 
maximizes resources and efficiency.

Finished or on-schedule.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 14



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

172
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Maintain effective 
government affairs.

Monitor federal activities, remain current on 
trends, and respond appropriately.

The county expanded its membership and is 
engaged with federal government affairs 
organizations.

Finished or on-schedule.

173
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Maintain effective 
government affairs.

Monitor state and local  activities , and remain 
current on trends, and respond appropriately.

The county testified to the legislative interim 
committee and corresponded with legislators 
ensuring representation on water issues.

Finished or on-schedule.

174
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Maintain effective 
government affairs.

Monitor state and local  activities , and remain 
current on trends, and respond appropriately.

The county continues to monitor bills, regional 
discussions, media, and other communications.

Finished or on-schedule.

175
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Maintain effective 
government affairs.

Monitor state and local  activities , and remain 
current on trends, and respond appropriately.

The county regularly participates in community 
forums, Regional Development Authorities, 
regional development agencies, associations, 
lobbyist groups, and government affairs 
organizations.

Finished or on-schedule.

176
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Improve function, safety, and 
accessibility of public facilities.

Maintain communication with area leaders and 
agencies.

The Storey County Regional Benefits Report is 
regularly distributed to legislatures, agencies, 
and area leaders as needed. 

Finished or on-schedule.

177
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Improve function, safety, and 
accessibility of public facilities.

Assess buildings for needed functional, security, 
and accessibility upgrades, implement upgrades 
to buildings within available funds.

Completed: (1) Courthouse electronic door 
locks, camera upgrades, seismic window 
treatment, and on-site security consol; (2) TRI 
McCarran Center electronic door locks and 
camera upgrades; (3) general facility camera 
upgrades; (4) swimming pool security systems; 
(5) Justice Court security upgrades.

Finished or on-schedule.

New
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.1
6.1 Anticipate, evaluate, and plan for public 
service needs.

Improve function, safety, and 
accessibility of public facilities.

Assess buildings for needed functional, security, 
and accessibility upgrades, implement upgrades 
to buildings within available funds.

Expansion of the TRI County Complex; relocate 
Fire District & expand Public Works and other 

Neutral/Acknowledged.

178
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Utilize existing professional services contracts 
and technology programs to maximum 
potential.

The county maintains a contract with DOWL for 
roads, water, and infrastructure project 
management.  

Finished or on-schedule.

179
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Utilize existing professional services contracts 
and technology programs to maximum 
potential.

Departments evaluate Tyler Systems capabilities 
before considering new software systems and 
vendors.

Finished or on-schedule.

180
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Meet growing project 
demands through in-house 
and contracted services.

Utilize professional services contracts and 
technology programs to additional applications 
not able to be fulfilled with current staffing 
resources.

The county has expanded RFPs and RFQs and 
other means to secure best possible contracts 
for facilities projects. The county is exploring 
possible service contracts or RFP/RFQ for 
buildings and facilities management.

Finished or on-schedule.

181
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain strategic plan 
alignment.

Review the strategic plan annually and update it 
as necessary to match current and projected 
resources.

The county team reviews and aligns department 
level and county level strategic plans in 
preparation for the tentative budget and capital 
improvement plan. 

Finished or on-schedule.

182
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain strategic plan 
alignment.

Review the strategic plan annually and update it 
as necessary to match current and projected 
resources.

The strategic plan this year is more detailed and 
better aligned with department plans and 
operations. The plan next year will include more 
performance metrics.

Finished or on-schedule.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 15



Storey County Strategic Plan
FY24 Annual Update-DRAFT

Perspectives and Goals
Item NuPerspective Goal # Goal Objective Strategy Tactic(s) Notes Status Applicable Department(s)

183
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain strategic plan 
alignment.

Review the strategic plan annually and update it 
as necessary to match current and projected 
resources.

The Capital Improvement Plan is aligned with 
expected revenues and the strategic plan.

Finished or on-schedule.

184
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain strategic plan 
alignment.

Review the strategic plan annually and update it 
as necessary to match current and projected 
resources.

Update strategic plan with BOCC in November 
2024 to align with the spring budget process. 

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

185
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain strategic plan 
alignment.

Review the strategic plan annually and update it 
as necessary to match current and projected 
resources.

Maintain the strategic plan as a “living 
document”.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

186
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain effective and 
statutory compliant public 
services, and cooperate with 
outside agencies to complete 
projects.

Utilize interlocal agreements and 
Memorandums of Understanding to maximize 
efficiency minimizing duplication.   

An interlocal agreement between the county 
and fire district was approved for the Fire 
Station 71 project. 

In progress; needs updating. Finished or on-schedule. IT

187
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain effective and 
statutory compliant public 
services, and cooperate with 
outside agencies to complete 
projects.

Utilize interlocal agreements and 
Memorandums of Understanding to maximize 
efficiency minimizing duplication.   

An interlocal agreement between county and 
fire district is being prepared for general shared 
services.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

IT

188
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain effective and 
statutory compliant public 
services, and cooperate with 
outside agencies to complete 
projects.

Utilize interlocal agreements and 
Memorandums of Understanding to maximize 
efficiency minimizing duplication.   

An interlocal agreement between county and 
VCTC was approved to share services and 
minimize function duplication.

Finished or on-schedule.

189
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain effective and 
statutory compliant public 
services, and cooperate with 
outside agencies to complete 
projects.

Utilize interlocal agreements and 
Memorandums of Understanding to maximize 
efficiency minimizing duplication.   

A memorandum of understanding was 
completed with Comstock Cemetery Foundation 
to operate and enhance county cemeteries.

The MOU will need to be re-approved per a land 
survey of cemetery expansions.

In progress with anticipated 
completion in FY25.

190
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Maintain effective and 
statutory compliant public 
services, and cooperate with 
outside agencies to complete 
projects.

Utilize interlocal agreements and 
Memorandums of Understanding to maximize 
efficiency minimizing duplication.   

The county continues to maintain interlocal 
agreements with the State of Nevada and other 
agencies for indigent, health, natural resources, 
law enforcement, and other services.

Finished or on-schedule.

191
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Ensure effective, consistent, 
and appropriate use of county 
funds and resources.

Maintain responsible and current administrative 
policies and procedures.

The county completed several major 
administrative policy updates including fiscal 
policies and vehicle uses. Additional policy 
updates are planned for FY25.

Finished or on-schedule.

New
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Create and maintain effective 
goals, policy guidance, and 
balance current and future 
needs of Storey County. 

Maintain comprehensive, and current 
organizational management

Complete a general review annually, and a 
comprehensive review of countywide plans 
every other year - in even numbered years 
(opposite legislative sessions).

Review mission, vision, goals, SWOT analysis. 
Make CIP/Strat Plan living documents. 

Neutral/Acknowledged.

New
6. Provide excellent, 
predictable, and efficient 
service to all our communities.

6.2
6.2 Maximize the efficient use of County 
resources.

Create and maintain effective 
goals, policy guidance, and 
balance current and future 
needs of Storey County. 

Maintain comprehensive, and current 
organizational management

Meet with necessary Storey County department 
heads/employees biennially to review 
countywide plans as a group (Piper's).

Neutral/Acknowledged.

Current as of: 11/7/2024 16



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/3/2024 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. Carson Tahoe Electric – Contractor / 1985 E. Valley Rd. ~ Minden, NV
• B. Food Cartel LLC – Food Truck / 1377 Jenny’s Ln ~ Fernley, NV

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Ashley mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to
the new business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

          17



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office November 20, 2024 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the December 03, 2024 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. Carson Tahoe Electric – Contractor / 1985 E. Valley Rd. ~ Minden, NV

B. Food Cartel LLC – Food Truck / 1377 Jenny’s Ln ~ Fernley, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  


	BOCC Meeting - Agenda - 12-3-2024 (11-25-2024 12 49 25 PM)
	BOCC Meeting - Meeting Packet - 12-3-2024 (11-25-2024 1 08 45 PM).pdf
	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the December 3, 2024, meeting.
	For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A.	All Points Electric LLC – Contractor / 5600 Grass Valley Rd. ~ Reno, NV
B.	Allied Mechanical Services LLC – Contractor / 1350 Freeport Blvd Ste. 104 ~ Sparks, NV
C.	American Pacific C
	Consideration and possible approval of the revision of Personnel policies 100 Employer Personnel Policies and Acknowledgement; 101 Personnel Administrative Directive; 102 Computing Time for Notice/Failure to Receive Notices; 103 Employee Change of Address
	Approval of claims in the amount of $13,852,497.95.
	Consideration and possible approval to postpone the public hearing for the proposed revised Old Corner Bar lease to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC  and related agenda items to the December 17, 2024 Storey County Board of Commissioners meeting to allow for legal
	Consideration and possible approval of Resolution No. 24-753, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding prior
	Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and approve the amended contract between Department of Health and Human Services Division of Health Care Financing and Policy due to the increase in medical care costs from $10,357.36 to $
	Report of the Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout Storey County.
	Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Safety Manual as approved by the Safety Committee.
	Presentation, public workshop, discussion, and consideration directing staff regarding updates to the Storey County Strategic Plan for Fiscal Year 2025-2026.
	For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
A.	Carson Tahoe Electric – Contractor / 1985 E. Valley Rd. ~ Minden, NV
B.	Food Cartel LLC – Food Truck / 1377 Jenny’s Ln ~ Fernley, NV




